
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Lori A. We»v«r IW PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301^57
UtcriniConimiukMitr 603-271-9544 l-S00-SS2-3345Ext9544

Fax: 603.271.4332 TDD Access: 1-000-735-2964 www.dhhs.nb.sov
Kstja S. Fox

Director

December 22, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral
Health, to enter Into an amendment to an existing contract with New Hampshire Alcohol and
Drug Abuse Counselors Association, d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive
Disorders (VC#170428), Concord, NH to continue providing workforce development activities to
the Alcohol and Other Drug provider system and to add activities focused on stimulant use and
co-occurring mental health disorders, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the
price limitation by $325,000 from $1,137,731 to $1,462,731 and extending the completion date
from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024. effective upon Govemor and Council approval. 44.80%
Federal Funds. 47.82% General Funds. 7.38% Other Funds (Governor's Office for Emergency
Relief and Recovery).

The original contract was approved by Govemor and Council on August 26, 2020. (Item
#16), and April 21, 2021, (Item #16), and most recently amended on June 15, 2022, (Item
#35).

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023 and anticipated
for State Fiscal Year 2024 with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price
limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed
and justified.

See attached fiscal details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing high-quality, competency and skills-
based professional development activities that address the needs of New Hampshire's Alcohol
and Other Drug Continuum of Care System workforce. This request adds Governor's Office for
Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR) arni American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding to
support expansion and enhancement of the Contractor's framework to Increase training and
technical assistance. The scope change includes implementation of trainings on evidence-
based prevention, treatment recovery and harm reduction strategies for stimulant use disorder
and co-occurring health disorders.

Approximately 4,5CX) individuals will participate in professional development activities
through June 30,2024.

The Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs multlsector Stimulant Work
Group recommends the need for additional training for substance misuse continuum of care
workforce on evidence-based treatment approaches to Stimulant use disorder and co-occurring
mental health conditions with fidelity that Include harm reduction and prevention approaches.
Strategies were identified as a result of New Hampshire's rising stimulant use and associated
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consequences. The additional funding will effectively support the Contractor's capacity to
develop, Implement, and provide evidenced-based prevention, treatment and recovery support
trainings and other professional development activities to the state's substance misuse
continuum of care workforce.

The Department will continue monitoring services through the review of post-event
surveys, monthly progress reports and annual site visits to ensure training events meet the
goals and objectives of the program.

As refererKed In Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional
years, contingent upon satisfoctory delivery of services, available hjnding, agreement of the
parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew
servic^ for the remaining one (1) year available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request there will be fewer
professional growth and learning opportunities for New Hampshire's Alcohol and Other Drug
Prevention, Treatment and Recovery workforce: which'may result in a decrease in knowledge,
skills, aptitude, experience amof)gst prevention, treatment, and recovery service providers.
The consequences of this include lower quality services and supports to individuals and families,
impacted by substance misuse, specifically StimUD and co-occurring conditions.

Area served: Statewide

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, additional
General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

ft--

Lori A Weaver

Interim Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to Join commimities and families
in providing opportunities for dlisens to achieve health and independence.
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05-95-92-920510^3820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds )

State Fiscal

Year

Class /
Account

Class Title
fob

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised Budget

2021 10'2-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $110,119 $0 $110,119

2022 102-500731 , Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $110,119 $0 $110,119

2023 - 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc .92058501 $110,000 $0 $110,000

Subtotal $330,238 so $330,238

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION

FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34%
General Funds)

State Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 ■ Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $105,831 $0 $105,831

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $105,831 SO $105,831

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $105,831 $0 $105,831

Subtotal $317,493 $0 $317,493

05-95-92-920510-33950000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION

FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESS GRANT (100%
Federal Funds)

State Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731
I

Contracts for Prog Svc 9205240? $25,000 $0 $25,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $25,000 $0 $25,000



05-95-92;920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION
FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, NH STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100%

Federal Funds)

State Fis^l

Year ,

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

1

2021 102-500731 • Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 1
1

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057046 $25,708 $0 $25,708

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057046 $99,292 $0 $99,292

1

2023 ' ■
I

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057050 $175,000 $0 $175,000

Subtotal $315,000 "$o $315,000

05-95-92-920510-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION

FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. SABG ADDITIONAL (100% Federal Funds)

State Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2022 1 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92059501 $0 $0 $0

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92059501 $150,000 $0 $150,000

1

Subtotal $150,000 $0 $150,000

05-95-94-940010-24450000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: NEW

HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ARPA DHHS FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State Fiscal Year
j

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Budget '

2023 •
1

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc
OOFRF602PH

9527A
$0 $137,500 $137,500

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc
00FRF602PH

9527A
SO $187,500 $187,500



1
Subtotal SO $325,000 $325,000

1 Total $1,137,731.00 $325,000 $1,462,731
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment ̂3

This Amendment to the Training for Alcohol and Other Drug {AGO) Workforce contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association, d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute
on Addictive Disorders ("the Contractor").

1

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 26. 2020, (Item #16), and April 21, 2021, (Item #16). and most recently amended on June 15,
2022, (Item #35) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 17. and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and
approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

whereas, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2024

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,462,731

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Ageiicy, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services. Section 1, Statement of Work. Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph
1.2.2, Subparagraph 1.2.2.3. to read:

1.2.2.3. In State Fiscal Year 2023 the Contractor must ensure:

1.2.2.3.1. A minimum of 83 live, professional development training events (trainings) with
in-person and virtual attendance options are offered, which include a minimum
of eight (8) trainings are offered in the northern region of New Hampshire (NH).

1.2.2.3.2. Training topics must be approved by the Department and include, but are not
limited to:

1.2.2.3.2.1. Skill building practice series.

1.2.2.3.2.2. Targeted training for:

1.2.2.3.2.2.1. Emerging issues.

1.2.2.3.2.2.2. Evidence-based prevention, treatment and recovery
strategies for stimulants use disorder (StimUD) and
co-occurring mental health disorders with adhesion to
harm reduction for youth ages 12 - 18. young

!  adulthood ages 18 - 25 and adults that include, but
are not lirnited to:

1.2.2.3.1.3.3.2.1. Contingency Management.

1.2.2.3.1.3.3.2.2. Community Reinforceme^os

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials ' '

RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01 -AOS Page 1 of 5 Date ^
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Approach.

1.2.2.3.1.3.3.2.3. Cognitive Behavioral Therapy.

1.2.2.3.1.3.3.2.4. Motivational Interviewing.

1.2.2.3.1.3.3.2.5. Exercise Therapy.

1.2.2.3.1.3.3.2.6. Mindfulness.

1.2.2.3.2.2. Other identified evidence-based practice skills.

1.2.2.3.3. Trainings on Stimulant Use Disorder (StimUD) are selected in consultation with
people with lived experience with stimulant use.

1.2.2.3.4. A minimum of two (2) learning module trainings, one (1) on harm reduction for
stimulants use and one (1) learning module training as Identified by vendor and
approved by Department.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph
1.2.2, by adding Subparagraph 1.2.2.4, to read:

1.2.2.4. In State Fiscal Year 2024, the Contractor must ensure:

1.2.2.4.1. A minimum of 20 live, trainings with in-person and virtual attendance options
are offered, which include a minimum of one (1) training offered in the northern
region of NH.

1.2.2.4.2. Training topics must be approved by the Department and include but are not
limited to:

1.2.2.4.2.1. Skill building practice series.

1.2.2.4.2.2. Targeted training for;

1.2.2.4.2.2.1. Emerging issues.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2. Evidence-based prevention, treatment and
recovery strategies for StimUD and co-occurring
mental health disorders with adhesion to harm

reduction for youth ages 12 - 18, young
adulthood ages 18-25 and adults that include,
but are not limited to:

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.1. Contingency Management.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.2. Community Reinforcement
Approach.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.3. Cognitive Behavioral Therapy.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.4. Motivational Interviewing.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.5. Exercise Therapy.

1.2.2.4.2.2.2.6. Mindfulness.

1.2.2.4.2.3. Other identified evidence-based practice skills.

1.2.2.4.3. Trainings are approved by the Department and include topics as described in
Subparagraph 1.2.2.3.2, above.

1.2.2.4.4. Trainings on StimUD are selected in consultation with people with lived

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders A-S-1.3

'h
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Date
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experience with stimulant use.

1.2.2.4.5. A minimum of one (1) learning module training is offered.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.2, by adding
Paragraph 1.26, to read:

1.26. The Contractor must participate collaboratively in Information Sharing Meetings.with the
Department's Training, Technical Assistance, and Evaluation contractors on a quarterly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

7. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1. to read:

1. This Agreement Is funded by;

1.1. 50.41% Federal Funds

1.1.1. Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (SAPTBG), as awarded
on 10/1/19, by the Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), Center for Substance
Abuse Treatment (CSAT), CFDA 93.959, FAIN TI083041.

1.1.2. NH State Opioid Response Grant (SOR), as awarded on 9/30/18, by SAMHSA
CSAT, CFDA 93.788, FAIN TI081685.

1.1.3. NH Partnership for Success Initiative Grant (PFS2) as awarded on 9/30/15 by
SAMHSA, Center for Substance Abuse Prevention (CSAP), CFDA 93 243 FAIN
SP020796.

1.2. 7.78% General Funds.

1.3. 41.81 % Other Funds {Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery).

8. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as specified
in Exhibit C-1, Amendment #1 Budget through Exhibit C-4, Amendment #3, SFY 2024 Budget.

9. Modify Exhibit C-3, Amendment #2 by replacing It in its entirety with Exhibit C-3, Amendment #3,
SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendment #3, SFY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders A-S-1.3
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In,full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

12/16/2022

Date

-DocuSigned by:

(K S. IPtfy

Title: Director

12/16/2022

Date'

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors
Association, d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on
Addictive Disorders

OotuSfgned by:

£.iaAum£*)E5492-...fiE54S_..

Name*'-'''^^ Brewer
Title. President bod

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute^ on Addictive Disorders A-S-1.2

RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01-A03 Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

^OocuSignttd by:

12/16/2022 '

74B73<B44a41460..

Date - Name:

Title. ^.j..,.Qppgy

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders A-S-1.2

RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAtN-01-A03 Page 5 of 5
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ExiAC C-3. Arondtrwnt ). SFT 2023 Budgal

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERiOO
instructions: Flli out the Direct/Indirect columns only for Contractor Share (if appiicabie) and Funded by OHMS. EVerything else will automatically populate.

Cofitrsctor Nsms: New Hampshire Ateehol and Drvg Abuse Coimseion Assoc., d/bfe New HampsMte Trsfeihg btatlute on Addletl/o Daorders

Prefect Tile: TteWng for the AOO Wortfdrce

Budget Period Juty 1. 2023 • June 30. 2023

1 otal Prootam Coal Cororactor Share 1 Mstch FutKled by OHMS contract alters
kndirect Total- Okect - Indirect Total - ■ -

1. Tolsl SakrvAWsoss %  231 036.00 5 5  231.938.00 '70.160.00 $ S
2. Emotovee Barwflts %  51.027.00 5 5  51,027.00 S" 15.435.00 $  • - S 15.435.00 S
3. ConsularU 5  79.000.00 S 5  79.000.00 s- 15.000.00 $  • 5 15.000.00 5  -
4. Eauomert; S  ' - $ - -

Redd $ $ . S 5 s  - - s
Reoair ant Maldenance $ - " 300.00 S s  3oom 100.00 $ 5 100.00
Puehaso/DeorecisUon 5" ' 3,100.00 S 5  3.10000 500.00 5 5

5. SMWees; $ S

Educalional $  11.090.00 5 5  11.09000 900.00 5 t 900.00 s
Usb $ ~ ' 5 .  •

Pharmacy $■ ~ . %
MetScal % -

omca 5  4.451.00 S 5  4,451.00 900.00 t 5  900.00 5
3. Tievd 5  16.320.00 5 5  18.320.00 500 00 i 5  500.00 $■
J. Oceueanev $  39.400.00 $ 5  39.400.00 10.400.00 $
6. Ctered Ejoietaae $ . . .. - . .

Talaotone $  ~" 1.300.00 S 5  I.3CO.OO 400.00 5
Postaoe 5  200.00 s 5  200.00 5 S
SiSiecrlDOone '% ' e.09000 5 5  6.96000 150.00 $ 5  150.00
Audit and Lsoal 5  1.50000 S S  1,500.00 5 200.00 5

5  .4.60000 5 5  4,600.00 5 1.000.CO 5 S  1.000.00
Board ErDsnaos 5  '' S -

-
-

9. Seftwara $  - ' "300.00 $ S  300.00 - .

5
10. MarUtiulCommrieattons $  ■ -5,300.00 5 S  5.300.00 5 600.00 S
11. Staff Edusadon and Trairira $  • • 500.00 5 5  500.00 5
12. Sutjwitiacta/Aofaeniade $  128.000.00 S 5  128.000.00 5 2,00000 5 5  2.00000 5
13. Other fsreoficdatati marealoryl: 5 -

CE Aooacstkine 5  40000 5 5  40000 5 100.00 5
FoodfVerue Rental 5  7.155.00 5 S  7.155 00 5 •" 2.15500 5 5  2,155.00 $
Partidoad PortanAtS hoedno 5  18.500.00 $ S  18.50000 5 1,500.00 S 5  1.500.00
Schotoratioa 5  ' 10.000.00 5 5  10.000.00 S 5 5
Oata Sactrtv 5  3.00000 5 S  3.000.00 5 3.000.00 $ 5  3.000.00
BOAS SIMtildbxi Taroaled 5  2.00000 5 5  2.000.00 5 5
PFS Taroaled S $ 5 j
SOR Admin . S  36,400.00 5 5  36.400.00 5 5
SORTaroeted $  87.279.00 5 5  97.279.00 5 - $
SOR Sdvlarshbe $- 31.000.00 5 5  31.000.00 5 5
SOR Stdeodrada/Aoreemeds $  10.321.00 $ 5  10.321.00 5 5

TOTAL 5  803.331.00 5 5  803.331.00 5 125.000.00 5 5  125.006.00 $ (78.331.00 t
bidlreet As A Percent el Oired

N««r HamptNra AlcehDl and CXher Onq Ceiraabn Assoc., dWs Nsw Hsnvslste Tr^*^ Inscau
RFP-2021-eDA$^TRAIN-01-A03
EjiNM C-3. Arnvdmnt 3, SPT 2023 BuSgal
Pags 1 ot 1
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ExhM C-4. Amandmanl 3, SPY 2024 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIODInstructions: Fill out the Direct/Indirect columns only for Contractor Share (If applicable) and Funded by DHHS. Everything else will automatically populate.

Contraeter Kama: Naw HarnpaHra Aleehet and Omg Abuaa Counaator* Aaaoe. OJbla Naw HampaNta TrakW>g Hatlula on AdifictWa Obordara

PrQ(oc( TMa: TraMng lor tha AOO Workforca

Budget Period Juty 1. 2023 • June 30. 2024

Urta Ram
ram Coat

-  ■ Centractor Snare f Match ..

1, Total Salarvrwaeee S~ ■ • S5.0COOO s 3 85.000.00 $• - -- 12.000.00 3
2. Emelovaa Bartaltta $  14.300.00 s 3 14.300.00 3 " 2.840.00 3 2.840.00 3
3. Consutaru S  38.000.00 s 3 38.000.00 3 3,000.00 3
4. EoUomert:

■  -

Rartal % s 3 3 3 3 3
S  480.00 3 3 480 00 3 " 300.00 3

Pi/cheiarPapracbUon $  3.200.00 3 3 3.200 00 3 2.000.00 3 3
5, Smplai:

-

Educalbnel '$ " * "ejoo.x 3 3 8.200.00 3 " 1,000.00 3 3 1.000.00 3
Lab $  - ■ - 3 S  ■
Phanracv s  - -- $  -
Modkal 3 3
Offlca s  " 4,7ro.oo 3 3  4.70000 '3 1.500.00 3 3  1.50000 3

}. Travel S  7,000.00 3 3  7,000.00 3 2.000.00 3 3  2.000.00 3
7. OeeuMncv S  - 24.725.00 3 3  24.725.00 3 4.345,00 3 3  4.34500 3 "
8. Curarf Emeraaa

Telatiruna S  - 1.000.00 3 3  1.600.00 3" 700.00 3 3  700.00 3
Poataoa $  400.00 3 3  400.00 3 300.00 3 3  300.00
SubacrlptiefB i  4,30000 3 3  4.300.00 3 1.300.00 3 3  1.300.00 3
AudR am LeoN S  1S50.00 3 3  1.550.00 3 600.00 3
limnnca 3  4,800.00 3 3  4,80000 3 1,200.00 3 3  1,200 00 3
Board Emaraaa - 3  " ■  ' 3

9. Sofhuera ^'300.00 3 3  300.00 3 50,00 3
to. MarliiKiralComrruSeBliona "$" '■ 4.800.00 3 3  4,800.00 3  ' 1.500.00 3
11. Staff Eduadon am TraWm $  1.805.00 3 3  1.885.00 3 985.00 3 3  985.00 3
12. SiOeoftraob/Aofeemarta S  15.000.00 3 3  15.000.00 3  • 3 3
13. Other (aceefie die:* nweeetorvl:

"■ • -

$  ' 400.00 3 3  400.00 3.""" ' " 100.00 3
Food/Vanua Rental 5  0,400.00 3 3  9.40000 3 8.500.00 3 3  8.500m 3
ParUdoent PortalUtS teatka $  0.00000 3 3  9.000 00 3 1.500 00 3 3  1.500 00 3
StfolaraWea 5  I2.000.00 3 3  12.000.00 3 2.000.X 3 3  2.00000 3
Data Seortv 5  4.500.00 3 3  4,500.00 3 2,500.00 3 3  2.500.00 3
BOAS SHseUBIm TBcoatad 5  4.000.00 3 3  4.000.00 3 3 3
PFS TarMad s 3 3 3 3
SOR AdiTin s  . 3 3 3 3  - - .
SCR Targaiad 5 3 3 3 j

SOR ScholaraNos $  " • 3 3  ' 3 j 3  .
SOR SiiieortractafAoteemarta

TOTAL 5  237.600.00
3
3 3  237,500.00

3
3 so.ooc.oo

3
3 3  50.900.00

3
i 187.500,00

3
3 3  187.500.00
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State of New Hampshire

I  Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Sccrctar>' of Stale of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify ihat NliW HAMPSIIIRIi ALCOHOL

AND DRUG ABUSL COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION is a New Hampshire Nonprolll Corporation registered lo transact business

in New l lampshirc on November 26. 1985. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secrelar>' of State's ofllcc

have been received and is in good standing as far as this onicc is concerned.

Business ID: 89242

Certificate Number: 0005748640

%

Ba.

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOE,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State ofNcw Hampshire,

this 4th day of April A.D. 2022.

William M. Gardner

Secretary'of State
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccrctar)' of Stale ofihc State of New l-lampshirc, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE TRAINING

INSTITUTE ON ADDICTIVE DISORDERS is a New Hampsliirc Trade Name registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on October 22. 2010. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretar>' of State's ofllce have been

received and is in good standing as far as this oilkc is concerned.

Business ID: 637806

Certificate Number; 0005748649
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto .set my hand and cause to be afiixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 4th day of April A.D. 2022.

William M. Gardner

Sccretan' of Slate
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CERTIRCATE OF AUTHORITY

'• —ClirlStlP? McKgnPS . hereby certily that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected C!ert</Secretary/Ofncer of New Hampshire Ateohol and Druo Abuse Counselors Association.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
on Seoternber 27.2022. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Unda Brevwr. President (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatpry>

is duly authorized on behalf of New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Atxjse Counselors Association to enter Into
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is
authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other Instruments, end any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to affect the purpose of this vole.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. 1 further certify that it is understood that the Stale of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits
on the authortty of any listed Individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all
such limitations are expressly stated herein.

D«Bd: ■201Z- -£Ahj S^llJ/{/^
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Christine McKenna
ntio: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

12/15/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsemcnt(s).

PRODUCER

Byse Insurance - Laconia

208 Union Avenue

Laconia NH 03246

contact Loretia Snell

(603)673-1201 (603)524-0748

aodIiess- Lcetlaghpminsurance.com
INSURER(SI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A Continental Casualty Company 20443

INSURED

NH ALCOHOL & DRUG ABUSE COUNSELERS ASSOC (SEE ENDT

130 PEMBROKE RD STE 150

CONCORD NH 03301

INSURER B Travelers Property Casualty Co of America (A/R)

INSURER C Citizens of Illinois 10714

INSURER 0

INSURERE

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL228136899 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TOUT
IWSD

mere
WVDTYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

PpLlCYEXP
(MM/PD^YYY) LIMITS

INSR
LTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DALWUE TORENTEO
PREMISES lEa occurrenca)

6025655757 06/30/2022 06/30/2023

MEO EXP(Ai>y orw owwi)

PERSONAL i AOV INJURY

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER

PRO
JECTPOLICY '□.IS □ LOC

OTHER;

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COA4P/OPAGG

BAIL

2,000.000

1.000,000

10.000

2.000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

S 1,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANYAUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddentl

BODILY INJURY (Per person)
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
ALfTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per aeddeftl)
PROPERTY DAKWGE
(Per aecMenU

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

I I t«

□ 6JUB0413N90-8-22 05/03/2022 05/03/2023 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 100,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 100.000

E-L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 500.000

Professional Liability
LHVH29508302 06/30/2022 06/30/2023

Prof. Liability

Aggregate
1.000,000

3.000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional RemerKs Schedule, mey be ettached If more space Is required)

Work performed during policy period. States for which statutory Workers Compensation Is provided; NH

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant St.

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD25 (2016/03)
IS> 1988-2015 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Mission: NHADACA's mission is to provide quality

education, workforce development, advocacy, ethical

standards and leadership for addiction professionals. We

empower efforts in prevention, treatment and recovery.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 806BA452-D6A3-4CBD-94A6-8286A848D61B

NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020
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Ml:NmER

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Rowley & assocfates, p.C.

CER I IKIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

46 NORTH STATE STREET-

CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE0330I
Tl-LEPHONE (603) 228-5400.
FAX #(603) 226-3532

M EM BER 0 F TH E PR IVATE

COMPANIES PRACTICESECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors
Association (the Association), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021 and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association as of December 31, 2021 and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of New Hampshire Alcohol and.
Drug Abuse Counselors Association and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselors Association's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we;

Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks, of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association's 2020 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated
June 3, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
December 31,2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
May 23,2022

-2-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2021 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2020

See Independent Auditors' Report

Ncl Asscis Wiihoui

Donor Restrictions

Net Asscis With

Donor Restrictions 2021 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expense

s 74,193

45,970

3,683

$  78,241 $  152,434 :

45,970

3,683

S  146,327

83,461

7,759

123,846 78,241 202,087 237,547

FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT, at cost

Less accumulated depreciation
76,570

(64,101)
-

76,570

(64,101)

77,420

(63,493)

12,469 - 12,469 13,927

LONG TERM ASSETS

Security deposit 2,800 2,800 2,800

Total Assets 139,115 78,241 217,356 254,274

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

10,529

14,095

- 10,529

14,095

5,834

24,624 - 24,624 5,834

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrctions

114,491

78,241

1 14,491

78,241

227,830

20,610
1 14,491 78,241 192,732 248,440

Total liabilities and net assets s 139,115 $  78,241 3i  217,356 %;  254,274

See Notes to Financial Statements

-3-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2020

Sec independent Auditors' Report

2021

Net Assets Without Net Assets With

Donor Restrictions Donor Restrictions Total

2020

Total

Revenue

Grant revenue

Contributions, in-kind

Training fees

Membership fees

Other revenue

516,223

4,235

96,1 16

7,830

215

80,173 596,396

4,235

96,1 16

7,830

215

439,236

1,550

105,781

9,693

478

Total revenues 624,619 80,173 704,792 556,738

Net assets released from

donor imposed restrictions 22,542 (22,542) - -

Expenses

Program expenses 710,586 - 710,586 516,867

Administrative expenses 45,049 45,049 21,241

Fundraising 4,865 - 4,865 3,677

Total expenses 760,500 760,500 541,785

Increase (Decrease) in net assets (1 13,339) 57,631 (55,708) 14,953

Net assets, beginning of year 227,830 20,610 248,440 233,487

Net assets, end of year S 114,491 S 78,241 S 192,732 S 248,440

See Notes to Financial Statements

A
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR

THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

See Independent Auditors' Report

Program Management Total Total

Services and General Fundraising 2021 2020

Salaries and wages $ 256,414 S  16,367 S S 272,781 $ 235,993
Employee benefits 34,859 2,225 - 37,084 21,524

Payroll taxes 19,938 1,273 - 21,211 20,760

Scholarships/sponsorships 34,318 2,191 - 36,509 16,545

Registration fees 35,156 2,244 - 37,400 -

Training 50,614 3,231 - 53,845 -

Legal and accounting fees 13,968 892 - 14,860 1 1,040

Professional services 126,562 8,078 - 134,640 105,831

Trainer fees 47,730 3,047 - 50,777 38,327

Conferences and meetings 5,439 347 - 5,786 3,672

Insurance 2,251 144 - 2,395 2,213

Travel expenses 2,182 139 - 2,321 4,730

Office supplies and expenses 17,022 1,087 - 18,109 12,033

Repairs & maintenance 102 6 - 108 -

Postage 693 44 - 737 493

Telephone 1,718 no - 1,828 1,682

Education 94 6 - 100 320

Marketing & communication 4,865 - 4,865 9,730 7,355
Bank and credit card fees 9 I - 10 33

Board expenses 8,578 548 - 9,126 1,452

Occupancy expenses 36,096 2,304 - 38,400 38,200
Depreciation 4,950 316 - 5,266 5,124

C0ViD-I9 expenses - •  - - - 10,462
Miscellaneous expenses 7,028 449 - 7,477 3,996

S 710,586 $  45,049 $  4,865 $ 760,500 S 541,785

See Notes to Financial Statements

-5-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 806BA452-D6A3-4CBD-94A6-8286A848D61B

NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

See Independent Auditors' Report

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash paid for furniture & equipment

Net cash (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

2021 2020

See Notes to Financial Statements

-6-

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES /

Increase (decrease) in net assets $ (55,708) $ 14,953
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

5,266 5,124

37,491 (82,481)

4,076 (1,655)

4,695 ^ 4,402

14,095 -

9,915 (59,657)

(3,808) (3,668)

(3,808) (3,668)

6,107 (63,325)

146,327 209,652

S  152,434 %  146,327
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020
See Independent Auditors' Report

2021 2020

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

In-kind contributions $ 4,235 $ 1,550

Non-cash contributions S - S

Sec Notes to Financial Statements

-7-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 806BA452-D6A3-4CBD-94A6-8286A848D61B

NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 1 NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature oF Activities

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association's (the Association) mission is to
provide quality education, workforce development, advocacy, ethical standards and leadership for
addiction professionals. The Association empowers efforts in prevention, treatment and recovery. The
Association is supported primarily through private funding and public support.

Significant Accounting Policies
The financial statements of the Association have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to not-for-profits. The Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting
principles for not-for-profits. The more significant of the FASB's generally accepted accounting
principles applicable to the Association, and the Association's conformity with such principles, are
described below. These disclosures are an integral part of the Association's financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization maintains its accounting records on the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the obligation is incurred. The Organization
reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets:
net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - These net assets generally result from revenues
generated by receiving contributions thai have no donor restrictions, providing services, and
receiving interest from operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-
related services, raising contributions, and performing administrative functions.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - These net assets result from giffs of cash and other assets
that are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, either
temporarily or permanently, until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated time
restriction ends or the purpose of the restriction is accomplished, the net assets are restricted.

Cash Equivalents
For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Association considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents, excluding amounts the use of
which is limited by Board designation or restriction. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Association
had no cash equivalents.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments under cost-reimbursable
contracts received in advance are deferred to the applicable period in which the related services are
performed, or expenditures are incurred, respectively. Contributions are recognized when cash or other
assets are received.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 1 NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Donated Materials and Services

The Association records the value of donated goods and services when there is an objective basis
available to measure their value. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, in-kind
contributions were $4,235 and $1,550, respectively.

Eouipment
Equipment is recorded at cost of purchase.or, if contributed, at fair market value at the date of donation.
If donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded as net assets with
donor restriction support. In the absence of such stipulation, contributions of equipment are recorded as
net assets without donor restriction support. The Association depreciates equipment over a 5-7 year
useful life using the straight-line method. Depreciation expense was $5,266 and $5,124 for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. Equipment purchases with a cost under $500 are not capitalized.

Income Taxes

The Association has been notified by the Internal Revenue Ser\'ice that it is exempt from federal income
taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Association is further classified as an
organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3) of the Code. The most significant
tax positions of the Organization are its assertion that it is exempt from income taxes and its
determination of whether any amounts are subject to unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Organization
follows the guidance of Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for Income Taxes,
related to uncertain income taxes, which prescribes a threshold of more likely than not for recognition
and recognition of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. All significant tax
positions have been considered by management. It has been determined that it is more likely than not
that all tax positions would be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes has been recorded.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Comparative Financial Information:
The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not
by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
confomiity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be
read in conjunction with the Association's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020,
from which the summarized information was derived.

Financial Instruments:

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid expense, prepaid
registrations, and accrued expenses are stated at carrying cost at December 31, 2021 and 2020, which
approximates fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments.

-9-



DocuSign Envelope ID; 806BA452-O6A3-4CBO-94A6-8286A848D61B

NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 1 NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cost Allocation and Functional Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statements of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting scr\'ices benefited based on estimates that are based on
their relationship to those activities, consistently applied. Those expenses include payroll and payroll
related expenses and occupancy costs. Occupancy costs are allocated based on square footage. Payroll
and payroll related expenses are based on estimates of time and effort. Other cost allocations are based
on the relationship between the expenditure and the activities benefited.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). Under the new guidance, a
lessee will be required to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than
twelve months. Consistent with current GAAP, the recognition, measurement, and presentation of
expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee primarily will depend on its classification
as a finance or operating lease. However, unlike current GAAP—which requires only capital leases
to be recognized on the statement of financial position—the new ASU will require both types of
leases to be recognized on the statement of financial position. This standard is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021.

NOTE 2 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Association receives a substantial amount of its support from government agencies. A significant
reduction in the level of this support, if this were to occur, may have an effect on the Association's
programs and activities. Grants often require the fulfillment of certain conditions as set forth in the
instrument of the grant. Failure to fulfill the conditions could result in the return of funds to grantors.
Although the return of funds is a possibility, the board of directors deems the contingency unlikely,
since by accepting the grants and their terms, it has made a commitment to fulfill the provisions of the
grant.

Approximately 82% and 65% of total support was derived from a single grant from the State of New
Hampshire for years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 3 CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Association maintains cash balances in several accounts at a local bank. These accounts are insured

by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At various times throughout the year, the
Association may have cash balances at the financial institution that exceeds the insured amount.
Management does not believe this concentration of cash results in a high level of risk for the
Association. At December 31, 2021 and 2020 the Association had no uninsured cash balances.

- 10-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 4 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair values of assets measured on a recurring basis at December 31 were as follows:

Other

Unobservable

Inputs
2021 Fair Value Level (T\

Accounts receivable S 45.970 S 45.970

2020

Accounts receivable S 83.461 S 83.461

The fair value of the accounts receivable are estimated at the present value of expected future cash
flows.

NOTES LEASE COMMITMENT

On December 19, 2013 the Association signed a lease agreement for office space in Concord, NH. The
term of the agreement is a six-year lease beginning March 1, 2014 and concluding on February 29, 2020.
An addendum to the lease was signed with a term of two years beginning March 1, 2020 and concluding
on Febaiary 28, 2022. Total rent related to this lease was 538,400 and $37,200 during the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The organization signed an additional 2-year amendment commencing March 1, 2022 and concluding
February 28, 2024; however, that amendment will terminate early on July 30, 2022. As a condition of the
early termination the association signed a 10-year lease for a larger office suite within the same building
in Concord, NH. The term of the 10-ycar lease agreement is June 1, 2022 through May 31, 2032.

Future minimum rental requirements for the years ended December 31 are:

2022 53,315

2023 52,140
2024 52,140

2025 52,920

2026 53,700

Thereafter 330.600

Total 5 594.815

NOTE 6 COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Employees of the Organization are entitled to paid vacation depending on job classification, length of
services and other factors. The statement of financial position reflects accrued vacation earned, but
unpaid as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 in the amount of $4,298 and $5,834, respectively.

- II -



DocuSign Envelope ID: 806BA452-D6A3-4CBD-94A6-8286A848D61B

NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 7 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Association has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,
liabilities and other obligations come due. The Association's primary sources of support are grants and
training fees. Most of that support is held for the purpose of supporting the Association's budget. The
Association had the following financial assets that could be readily made available within one year
to fund expenses without limitations:

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents $ 152,434 $ 146,327

Accounts receivable 45,970 83,461

Less amounts subject to
donor imposed restriction (78.241) (20.610)

NOTES BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Association has net assets designated for various future projects and events. These funds are
comprised of the following as of December 31:

2021 2020

Cash reserve account S 23.919 S 15.362

NOTE 9 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposed or periods at December 3

Subject to expenditure for specific purpose: 2021 2020

BRSS TACs Contract $3,758 $3,758
Bank ofNH Grant 2,935 3,750

JSI 8790 Contract 3,863 3,863

JSI CBPOOl Contract 15,724 -0-

JSI PNHOOl Contract 38,250 -0-

NH Problem Gambling 7,500 -0-

Dobles Foundation 5,745 7,426

Train it forward • 466 1.813

Total net assets with donor restrictions $78,241 $20,610

NOTE 10 RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES-COVID-19

As a result of the spread of the COVlD-19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen which may
negatively impact future financial performance. The potential impact of these uncertainties is unknown
and cannot be estimated at the present time.

-12 -
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 11 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through May 23, 2022, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance to require
disclosure. It has been detennined that no subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this
period.

NOTE 12 DEFERRED REVENUE

In 2021, NHADACA received registration fees for events in the following year. NHADACA had
unearned revenue of $ 14,095, and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

- 13-
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NHADACA Board List December 2022

Member Board Position Business Address Email address Business Phone

Linda Brewer President

State ofNHEAP

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

vacant
At Large

Representative

Christopher

Foster
Treasurer

Corporate Office

Amatus Health

10019 Reisterstown Rd #301

Owings Mills, MD 21117

Christine

McKenna
Secretary

GNCA/Keystone Hall

133 Epping Road, Unit B
Exeter, NH 03833

Alexandra

Hamel

Immediate Past

President

Easter Seals/Farnum Center

140 Queen City Ave.,

Manchester, NH 03103

Matthew Lee
Southern

Representative

Bonfire Behavioral Health

35 E Industrial Way, Suite 11

Rochester, NH 03867
/

Sarah Pepper
North Country

Representative

Children and Families

1016 US Route 5 Suite 2

St Johnsbury, VT 05819

vacant
Seacoast

Representative

Meredith

Senter

Central

Representative

Catholic Medical Center

8100 McGregor St.

Manchester, NH 03102

Elena VanZandt

Connecticut

Valley

Representative

HALO Educational Systems

44 Roberts Rd

Canaan, NH 03741

Tina Holmes
At Large

Representative

Gorham Family Resource Ctr

117 Main Street

Berlin, NH 03570

Sara Dupont
At Large

Representative

635 Main Street, Suite 303

Laconia, NH 03246

Diane Fontneau President Elect

Seacoast Mental Health Ctr

1145 Sagamore Avenue

Portsmouth, NH 03801

vacant
Lakes Region

Representative

Amy Casey
Student

Representative

Plymouth State University

Student

Plymouth, NH 03264
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Alyssa M. Demers

EDUCATION:

NHTI Concord Community College- Concord, NH 2007-2008

Information Technology- completed several courses

Lakes Region Community College- Laconia, NH 2011-2017

Associate's degrees in Human Services and Automotive Technology

Southern New Hampshire University- Manchester, NH 2017-2019

Bachelor's degree in Psychology with a concentration in Addiction Counseling

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

New Hampshire Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association, Concord, NH

Educational Support Specialist beginning 1/2023

• Work closely with Training Director to coordinate and implement trainings, identify training
needs, research potential trainers, and perform training related activities

•  Manage supplemental training contracts and subcontracts for the NH Training Institute on

Addictive Disorders

.  • Assist with website and learning management system maintenance

•  Provide participant and presenter technical support for conferences and training

■  • Lead support for agency networking technology

Training Coordinator 4/2022-12/2022

•  Schedule and contract with trainers to conduct trainings

•  Assist with website and learning management system maintenance

•  Provide participant and presenter support for conferences and training

•  Provided technical support for conferences and training
Training Associate 1/2019-4/2022

•  Completed work of a training coordinator from 1/2019-3/2019

•  Supported tasks for SOO-person collaborative behavioral health conference

•  Aided in the transition from in-person trainings to virtual trainings

•  Expanded electronic webinar library

•  Provided onsite support to presenters and training participants

Training Assistant 12/2016-12/2018

• Maintain registration database and data entry

•  Coordinating, scheduling and posting webinars

•  Assist in maintaining the agency \vebsite

Student Office Assistant 9/2015-12/2016

•  Office support such as data entry, answering phones, filing and copying
•  Record registration fees received

Walmart, Concord, NH

Cashier 9/2013- 10/2017

•  Processed merchandise returns and exchanges

• Maintained a clean store

•  Received payments by cash, check, credit card, vouchers, or automatic debits

•  Provided excellent customer service
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Corissa Webb

•  Excellent oral and written

communications skills

•  Proficient in Microsoft Office

Suite

DESIRED POSITION / INDUSTRY

•  Understanding of design

principles and theories

•  Planning and organizational

skills

•  Strong interpersonal business

skills

•  Training and mentoring

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Arts in Instructional Design January 2023

The University of Arizona Global Campus - Chandler, AZ

Dean's List: Spring 2020, Fall 2020, Spring 2021, Fall 2021, Spring 2022, Fall 2022

Golden Key International Honor Society

EXPERIENCE

Instructional Design Specialist Beginning January 2023

Training Associate January 2022 - December 2022

Training Assistant October 2021 - December 2021

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association (NHADACA) - Concord, NH

•  Creates evaluations and summarizes data to prepare reports used In training review and decision-making.

•  Updates and maintains the website, as well as performs training related activities such as data entry, preparing

and sending invoices and accounts receivable.

•  Maintains NHADACA's webinar presence by working with presenters to record webinars by creating contracts,

recording the content, editing the videos, posting the webinars, monitors the webinars progress, and releasing

certificates to participants.

•  Maintains and establishes working relationships with other agencies and the general public.

Auto Claims Adjuster III December 2018 - September 2021

United States Automobile Association - Phoenix, AZ

•  Developed leadership skills by mentoring and assisting in training new employees In how to adjust complex auto

claims. Created a simple needs analysis to determine where gaps in knowledge exist and developed a strategy to

bridge the gaps.

•  Adjusted low to moderately complex auto claims while adhering to compliance standards In each state.

Maintained an above-average quality metric (98%) on open file reviews and continuously received positive

member satisfaction feedback.

•  Acquired and applied a deep knowledge of P&C insurance industry products, services, and processes with

minimal supervision. Communicated with members through phone, chat, and email.

•  Selected for several specialized projects to assist with business operations, including being a SME for the

Instructional Design team and assisted with optimizing e-learning lessons.

Customer Service Representative February 2015 - January 2018

United Health Group - Hooksett, NH

•  Mentored and coached new employees on how to take calls and be efficient in their new role while providing

tips and best practices.
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•  Multitasked in a fast-paced environment using multiple software systems as well as kept focus on the member,

determined and confirmed member eligibility and benefits.

•  Selected for specialized team to assist with backlog and escalated issues that could not be resolved on the first

call.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

T-Ball Director December 2022 - Present

Goffstown Junior Baseball - Goffstown, NH

•  Serves as a member of the Board of Directors of the Goffstown Junior Baseball.

•  Assigns players to teams and coaches. Confirms birth records and player eligibility.

•  Answers questions from other board members, player parents, and coaches.

•  Assists with administrative roles for clinics, fundraising, and volunteer programs.
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UCENSURE

EDUCATION

EXPERIENCE

DIANNE P. CASTRUCCI

Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor

Master of Education Degree, May 1993
Concentration: Counselor Education: Human Services

Bachelor of Science Degree. Mav 1989

Major; Elementary Education Minors: Psychology and Human Seivices
Plymouth State College, Plymouth, N.H.

Executive Director. NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association, Concord,
N.H.— June 2012 —Present

Promoted to Executive Director in June 2012, the Chief Executive Officer of
NHADACA reports to the Board of Directors, provides leadership and direction in
the development and delivery of all activities and is responsible for the
organization's consistent achievement of its mission and financial objectives.
•  ensures the organizational operations and activities are provided in the highest

quality manner within the fiscal and human resource limitations of the
organization.

•  administers and manages all grants, contracts, and agreements and informs the
Board of Directors of these and other commitments that involve the utilization

of agency operational and financial resources and/or staff and volunteer time.
•  ensures the fiscal integrity and stability of the organization.
•  staffs the day-to-day operations of the organization providing leadership to staff

and volunteers to cfTectively carry out their assigned responsibilities.
•  serves as a spokesperson for the organization in public settings, consistent with

the mission, policies, and activities of the organization.

Training Institute Director. NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association/ NH
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders, Gilford, N.H. — Feb. 2004 - June 2012

Coordinates logistics of workforce development opportunities for substance abuse
prevention, inter\'ention and treatment professionals throughout New Hampshire.
• consults with treatment and prevention professionals to identify specific training

topic needs and local or regional trainers with expertise on that topic.
• collaborates with co-sponsors for various events.

• contacts trainers, contracts their ser\'ices and coordinates travel arrangements
• markets and advertises events by creating electronic/email flyers and printed

brochures and submits events for inclusion in training publications.

• maintains participant database including attendance, tuition and CE information.
• coordinates functions associated with presenting major conference and training

workshops of various sizes, and at various locations, statewide.

Board Administrator. NH Board of Licensing for Alcohol & Other Drug Use

Professionals, Concord, N.H. — September 2011 - March 2012
Write Board correspondence, create agenda for and keep minutes at Board meetings,
organize professional packets for review, maintain databases, arrange and order
testing, database auditing, other administrative functions as assigned by the
chairperson of the board.
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Dianne Castmcci page 2

Master Licensed Substance Use Outpatient Counselor. Horizons Counseling Center,
Gilford, N.H. — January 2006 - May 2013
Provide substance abuse services related to evaluation and group treatment
to individuals in an outpatient setting and facilitate various psycho-educational
groups including Project ADAPT to be held at, and in coordination, with the
Belknap County Department of Corrections.

Exit Counselor. Community Alcohol Information Program, Inc., Boscawen, Nashua

and Laconia, N.H. — July 2003 - November 2005
Conduct exit interviews for clients at the completion of the CAIP, Impaired Driver
Intervention Program for DWI first offenders. Attended PRI training October 2003.
• diagnosed, and referred as appropriate, DWI first offenders for alcohol

dependence and/or alcohol abuse upon file review and structured exit inter\'iew.

Licensed Substance Use Outpatient Counselor. James Foster & Associates,

Manchester, N.H. — October 2003 - July 2004
Provide substance abuse ser\'ices related to evaluation and brief treatment

of individuals in an outpatient setting.

Corrections Counselor/Case Manager. NH Department of Corrections, Lakes
Region Facility, Laconia, N.H. — December 1998 - February 2004
Providing clinical services of inmates participating in a modified therapeutic
community treatment program (Summit House/Level 3 Substance Abuse Services).
• chaired and participated on, professional development committees to determine

staff training needs and involvement, VOITIS grant fund use, as well a^ planning
and coordination of multiple substance abuse training events for DOC staff.

• supervised inmates in lectures, clinical groups, community meetings, clinical
staffing, individual counseling sessions and other clinical group activities.

• prepared/maintained clinical charts including evaluations, discharge summaries,
treatment transfer information for parole and aftercare recommendations.

•  impacted the direction/implementation and planning of treatment services
available to inmates incarcerated at the Lakes Region Facility.

Antioch New England Adjunct Facultv. Summit House Program, Lakes Region
Facility, Laconia, N.H. — May 2000 - May 2002
Field super\'ise and train graduate interns from the Antioch Graduate School of New
England in methods and practice of substance abuse counseling.
•  interview, accept or deny, teach/train and super\'ise master's level interns.
• communicate with professional seminar leaders.

Substance Use Counselor. N.H. Bureau of Substance Abuse Services,

Multiple Offender Program, Laconia, N.H. — December 1993 - December 1998
Working as a clinical team member providing assessment, education and
inten'ention services to individuals convicted of multiple DWls.

• conducted intake/orientation, education, individual and group counseling,
evaluation and assessment ser\'ices relevant to client's substance use, medical,

psychological, legal and social history.
•  represented the program at official hearings of the Dept. of Motor Vehicles.
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Dianne Castrucci page 3

Independent Contractor/Counselor. NH Department of Corrections, First Step
Program, Lakes Region Facility, Laconia, N.H. — July 1997 - September 1997
Facilitated the substance abuse/psycho-educational group component to NH State
Prison inmates participating in the First Step Program. The course involved
providing 25-28 male inmates intervention services, 3 hours per week for 8 weeks.

• created curriculum including lesson outlines and client handouts.

•  facilitated psycho-educational course on substance abuse related issues with
difficult offender population.

Shelter Manager. Task Force Against Domestic and Sexual Violence,

Plymouth, N.H. — February 1992 - December 1993
Completed 40-hour crisis training for Task Force volunteer crisis-line and was hired
as the Shelter Manager four months later.
• communicated with DCYS/DCYF on crisis-related issues.

•  supported women in crisis at Plymouth Area Court sessions.
• coordinated/managed building functions, including monitoring clients, intakes,

general maintenance, food pantry and emergency supplies.
• presented training workshops on shelter regulations and procedures.

Editorial Assistant. Office of News Services, Plymouth State College,
Plymouth, N.H.— August 1989 - November 1993
Associated with this ofTice for four years starting as Administrative Secretaiy then

promoted to Editorial Assistant.
• produced internal and external desktop publications.
• created weekly and monthly events calendars to market college events.

• WTOte and distributed news releases concerning student success.
• hired and supervised student office assistants.

• created purchasing documents for supplies and ser\'ices.
• utilized and maintained extensive computer databases.

• submitted listings of college events to newspapers for publication.

OTHER

ACTIVITIES Legislative Commission on Primary Care Workforce Issues 2018-Present
NH Governor's Commission Treatment Task Force 2018-2022

NH LADC Board Peer Review Committee April 2013- March 2019
Associate Member of the Eleaming Guild October 2012-2014
Member of National Association of Forensics Counselors 2002-2012
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EMILY SOREY-BACKUS

EDUCATION

University of New Hampshire Graduate School
Master of Public Hcalfh

University of New Hampshire
Dual Major: Comniuiticalioii & Women's Studies
Minors: Psi/chology 6* Race, Culture, Power

Regent's University
Study Abroad

EXPERIENCE

Manchester, Ne\v Hampshire

Durham, New Hampshire

London, United Kingdom

May 2020
CPA: 3.7

May 2015
CPA: 3.5

Spring 2014

New Hampshire Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association July 2021- Present
Training Director
•  Direct and support the general functions of the New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders
•  Organize and implement training events within contract budget guidelines
•  Contract reporting
•  Super\'ise, evaluate, and delegate tasks to training staff
•  Other duties as assigned

Southern New Hampshire Services Jan. 2019-June 2021
Neio Hampshire Works for Recovery Career Navigator
I  • Helped to implement and assisted in the success of a grant project aimed at helping individuals affected by the

opioid crisis find sustainable, long-term employment
•  Assisted, guided, and counseled clients with various career-oriented tasks including career exploration, job

search, job training research, job search, resume and cover letter preparation, and interviewing skills
•  Guided clients through the process of applying for, managing the stresses of, and successfully completing

educational programs such as community college courses and other career preparation training
•  Adjusted to and successfully met grant deliverables despite unexpected changes due to the COVID-19 pandemic

Riverbend Community Mental Health June 2015-Jan. 2019
Program Assistant II
•  Functioned as a Program Assistant for both the Community Support Program and the Integrated Center for

Health and demonstrated efficiency under pressure in fast-paced programs supporting clients with severe and
persistent mental illness

•  Completed various administrative tasks including answering and triaging calls, completing initial orientation
appointments, assisting with program admissions, verifying and discussing client insurance and fees,
maintaining accurate medical records, data entr)', and reconciliation research

•  Provided part-time support to both the Residential Program and the Medication Support Program

SKILLS

Computer applications including Microsoft,
Apple, and Google programs

Customer service

Cultural and racial awareness and sensitivity
Social media expertise

Strong understanding of intersectiohality

Strong communicator

Detail-oriented

Self-motivated

Basic health screening activities

Critical thinking
Strong writing and written communication

Experience with various case management
platforms



Stephanie L Bean

SUMMARY: Adaptable office manager with 15 years of administrative experience. Has strong organization,

communication, attention to detail and leadership skills. Seeking an Office Manager position within a

company that offers flexibility and the ability to grow both professional and personally.

EDUCATION: New Hampshire Community Technical College

Liberal Arts, Business ~ May 2008

EXPERIENCE:

New Hampshire Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association, Concord, NH
Office Manager - beginning Jan 2023

Support the general functions ofthe New Hampshire Alcohol & OrugAbuse Counselors Association,

it's varied programs, the Executive Director and Board of Directors.

Manage the smooth running of day-to-day office operations ensuring organized office procedures,
maintained and current filing systems, reviewed/approved supply requisitions and properly assigned and
monitored correspondence and clerical functions

Along with Executive Director, supervise, evaluate and assign work to office support staff and volunteers,

assisting when needed to complete tasks.

Conduct PayPal reconciliation, revenue reports, QuickBooks accounting processes, invoices and similar
accounts payable & receivable functions

Membership support including tracking regional membership, monthly communications and organizing

membership events/annual meeting

Coordinate NHADACA events, including programs for employees and board members to ensure

maximum efficiency

Occasional support functions for the Training Institute and Credentialing Partnership

Manage scholarship processes including award applications, notification, tracking, marketing, reporting and

distribution

Assist Executive Director with various reports for auditing purposes.

Assist with updating policies, manuals, succession plan, and other reports that may impact NHADACA policy.

Board and membership functions.

Other duties as assigned by the Executive Director and the Board of Directors of NHADACA

Administrative Assistant - Jan 2020- Dec 2022

Manage/Assist with membership related communication (letters/mailings, membership lists,

tracking of expiration dates, and related emails).

Assist with updating policies-,manuals, succession plan, and other reports that may impact NHADACA

policy.

Support the general functions of the Executive Director and NHADACA as a whole

Perform administrative related activities such as answering phones, PayPal reconciliation,

memos, invoices and similar accounts payable & receivable functions, writing and maintaining

meeting minutes, general correspondence, tracking regional membership, maintaining

databases and some financial reporting, -

Occasional support functions needed to implement regularly scheduled training events such as

assisting with participant registration, cleaning, equipment and room set-up and clean-up.

Complete contract compliance reports as well as assist Executive Director with various reports

for auditing purposes.

Assist in the maintenance of websites, calendars and updating website documentation.



AutoServofTilton, Tilton, NH

Business Development Center Representative - March 2017- July 2019

•  Answers all internet and phone inquiries for the dealership.

•  Sends email responses and photos.

•  Set appointments for customers to test drive.

• Works on a team

Brewster Academy, Wolfeboro, NH

Assistant to the CFO - Oct 2016 ■ March 2017

•  Assisted in all administrative duties for the business office including tuition and student debit accounts.

Servpro of Concord, Concord, NH
Office Manager-June2012■ June2016

Used a range of office software; including email, customized scheduler, QuickBooks, spreadsheets and databases.

Process and manages payroll for the company weekly.

Manage jobs files from initial phone to final billing.

Develop and implemented new processes for inter office communication.

Manage and audit all files for specific insurance company protocols.

Maintain the overall condition of the office and organized meetings with staff.

Oversee the recruitment of new staff, including training and induction

Ensure adequate staff levels to cover for absences and peaks in workload, often by using third party agencies.

Delegate work to staff and managed their workload and output levels.

Promote continuing staff development and training.

Respond to customer enquiries and complaints.

Servpro of the Seacoast, Dover, NH
Assistant Project Manager - April 2008 - May 2012

Provided excellent organizational and time management skills.

Excelled in flexibility and adaptability to changing workloads.

Able to prioritize tasks and work under pressure.

Used to liaise well with others and delegate tasks.

Used strong oral and written communication with clients and coworkers.

Gave much attention to detail.

Maintained problem-solving skills and project management assists.

TECHNICAL SKILLS: Proficient in Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Constant Contact, Survey Monkey and

QuickBooks



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel SPY 2023

Name Job Title Salaiy % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Diannc Castnicci Executive Director $86,730 43% $37,294

Emily Sorey-Backus Training Institute Director $62,400 55% $33,633

Alyssa Demcrs Educational Support Specialist $50,128 50% $25,064

Corissa Webb Instructional Design Specialist $50,128 50% $25,064

Stephanie Bean OfTicc Manager $49,920 45% $21,130

Linda Brewer Board President $0 0% $0.00

Christopher Foster Board Treasurer $0 0% $0.00

Diane Fontneau Board President Elect $0 0% $0.00



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel SPY 2024

Name Job Title Salar)' % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
Dianne Castrucci Executive Director $86,730 14% $12,142
Emily Sorcy-Baclcus Training Institute Director $62,400 14% $8736
Alyssa Dcmcrs Educational Support Specialist $50,128 14% $7,017
Corlssa Webb Instructional Design Specialist $50,128 14% $7,017
Stephanie Bean Office Manager $49,920 14% $6,989

Linda Brewer Board Past President $0 0% $0.00
Christopher Foster Board Treasurer SO 0% $0.00
Diane Fontncau Board President $0 0% $0.00
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55
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

GOVEIWOR'S COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL & OTHER DRUGS

Lori A ShWMtte PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 0330!
Coofflluloaer 603-271*9564 1*800-804*0909

F«i: 603-271-6105 TDD Accesi: 1-800*735-2964 www.dbbt.nh.gov/dcbn/lkla9

June 1.2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Cpuncil

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sen/ices, Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to amend an existing
contract with New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association d/b/a New
Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders (VC#170428-8-001), Concord. New
Hampshire, to expand training, education and programming for the Alcohol and Other Drug
Continuum of Care worldorce. by increasing the price limitation by $540,831 from $596,900 to
$1,137,731 and by extendirig the completion date from June 30. 2022 to June 30. 2023. effective
upon Governor and Council approval. 61.49% Federal Funds. 9.49% General Funds. 29.02%
Other Funds (Governor's Cornmlssion).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on August 26. 2020, Item
#16 and most recently amended with Governor and Couiicli approval on April 21,2021, Item #16.

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line Items within the price llmilatioh and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is -to provide additional high-quality competency and skills-
based trainings and other professional development activities that address the needs of the
state's substance misuse continuum of care workforce by strengthening and enhancing trainings
that reflect advances in prevention, treatment and recovery science including but not limited to
harm reduction strategies, contingency management, trauma-informed care, secondary exposure
to trauma for front line, workers, data driven decision making, and the impact of COVID-19 on
behavioral health. As of May 2022, the vendor conducted 33 trainings across the continuum of
care. In post training surveys, 93®/o of participants indicated they were highly satisfied with the
trainings. Due in part to this rate of satisfaction, On March 4, 2022, the Governor's Commission
"ph Alcbhbl and Other Drugs voted to continue funding this program for SPY '23. .

As referenced In Exhibit A, Revisions to the Standard Contract Provisions of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval, the Department is exercising its option to renew services for one
(1) of the two (2) years available.

Th^ Deporlmtnl ofHtaUh and Human Services' Mitsion is to join communities and /amiUts
in prooiiting opportunities for citiuns to achieve health and independence.
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New Hampshire lacks the workforce capacity to provide the substance misuse prevention,
early-Intervention, treatment, recovery support and other continuum of care services necessary,
to meet the growing need for these services. Multiple factors, including high turnover rates, worker
shortages, an aging workforce, inadequate compensation, and stigma have created a workforce
crisis in the field which has only become more acute since the COVID-19 pandemic began. The
continued improvement and transformation of the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care
system and integration with primary and mental healthcare depend entirely on a workforce that is
adequate in size, as we!) as trained and supported, to meet the needs of substance misuse end
other behavioral health needs of the citizens of New Hampshire.

The Departrhent will monitor services using post-event surveys, monthly progress reports
and annual site visits. Performance Measures include;

•  In SFY23, the Contractor will provide a minimum 75 trainings to providers across the
continuum of care;

•  90% of participants surveyed will 'Strongly Agree' that the training met the learning
objectives;

•  90% of participants surveyed will Strongly Agree that as a result of participating In the
training will apply the knowledge learned In their personal or profession life.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer
professional growth and learning opportunities for the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care
system workforce In the state, which may result in a decrease in prevention, treatment and
recovery providers' knowledge, skills and aptitude to apply advances in addiction science. The
consequences of this include lower quality services and supports to individuals and families
Impacted by substance misuse. Which can lead to substandard care and progression of
behavioral health conditions;

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number # 93.243 FAIN SP020786,
Assistance Listing Number #93.788 FAIN TI081685, Assistance Listing Number #93.959 FAIN
TI083041, TI084659 and TI083955

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shiblriette

Commissioner
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05-95.92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION
FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other

Funds)

State Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-S00731 Contracts for Prog Svc 920S8S01 5110,119 SO 5110,119

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 920S8S01 5110,119 SO $110,119

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 920S8S01 SO SllO.OOO SllO.OOO

Subtotal $220,238 $110,000 $330,238

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS; DIVISION
FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 84%

General Funds)

State Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 5105,831 SO S105,831

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 920S7S01 5105,83) so $105,831

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 920S7S01 so $105,831 5105.831

Subtotal $211,662 $105,831 $317,493

05-95-92-920510-33950000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION
FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESS GRANT (100%

Federal Funds)

State Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 525,000 SO S25,O00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $0 SO SO

Subtotal $2S,000 $0 $25,000
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05-9S-92.920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION
FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, NH STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100%

Federal Funds)

State Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased .

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 515,000 SO 515,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 920S7O46 525,708 50 525,708

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 920S7O46 599,292 50 599,292

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057050 50 5175.000 5175,000

Subtotal S140.000 SJ7S,000 5315,000

05-9S-92-g20510-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION

FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. SABG ADDITIONAL (100% Federal Funds)

State Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised Budget

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92059501 SO 50 SO

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92059501 SO 5150,000 5150.000

Subtotal $0 stso.opo $150,000

Subtotal $596,900 $540,831 $1,137,731
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U2

This Amendment to the Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce contract is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor Association d/b/a New
Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders ("the Contractor").
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on August 26,2020. (Item #16). as amended on April 21, 2021, (Item #16). the Contractor
agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract
and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 the Contract may be
amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation,
or modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

■1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.4, Completion Date, to read:
130 Pembroke Road, Suite 150, Concord, NH 03301-3857

2. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2023

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$1,137,731.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.2.,
Paragraph 1.2.2., to read:

1.2.2. Planning, coordinating and providing training opportunities; both in-person and
through eLearning platforms: which cover core, intermediate, and advanced levels of
instruction; are approved by the Department: and include, but are not limited to:

1.2.2.1. In state fiscal year 2021:

1.2.2.1.1. A minimum of 64 live, professional development training events
vwth in-person and virtual attendance options, including, but not
limited to skill building practice series and targeted training for
emerging issues, with at least six (6) being offered in the northern
regions of NH.

1.2.2.1.2. A minimum of five (5) new, on-demand webinars, added to the
existing library of webinars.

1.2.2.1.3. A minimum of four (4) kinship family trainings.
1.2.2.1.4. A minimum of six (6) Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

trainings, as detailed in Subsection 1.3.
/—"

New Hampshire Alcohol and Df\jg Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders Contractor Initials
RFP-2021-BDAS-05.TRAiN-01-A02 Page 1 of 5 Date
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1.2.2.2. In State Fiscal Year 2022:

1.2.2.2.1. A minimum of 75 live, professional development training events
with in-person and virtual attendance options including, but not
limited to skill building practice series and targeted training for
emerging issues, with at least six (6) being offered in the northern
regions of NH.

1.2.2.2.2. A minimum of five (5) new, on-demand webinars, added to the
existing library of webinars.

1.2.2.2.3. A minimum of eight (8) Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
trainings, as detailed in Subsection 1.3.

1:2.2.3. In State Fiscal Year 2023:

1.2.2.3.1. 1.2.2.2.1. A minimum of 75 live, professional development training
events with in-person and virtual attendance options, that include,
but are not limited to skill building practice series and targeted
training for emerging issues, with at least six (6) events being
offered in the northern regions of New Hampshire.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, by adding Subsection
1.24., to read:

1.24. The Contractor's Training Director shall participate in meetings with the
Department on a monthly basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department,
to ensure compliance with the contractual requirements.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, by adding Subsection
1.25., to read:

1.25. The Contractor shall participate in meetings with the Department on a quarterly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department, to ensure compliance with
the contractual requirements.

7. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3., to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibit C-1, Amendment #1 Budget through Exhibit C-
3. Amendment #2 Budget.

8. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4., to read:

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting documents to the.
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following
month. The Contractor shall:

4.1. Ensure the invoice is presented in a form that is provided by the
Department or is otherwise acceptable to the Department.

4.2. Ensure the invoice identifies and requests payment for allowable costs
incurred in the previous month.

4.3. Reserved.

4.4. Ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department
New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Associalion d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders Contractor Initials

RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01 •A02 Page 2 of5 Date S/25/2022



OocuSign Envelope ID; 806BA452-D6A3-4CBD-94A6-8266A848D61B

OocuSign Envelope ID: 948564EB-802B-4C00-BBC2-470141OFF10O

with the supporting documentation for authorized expenses, in order to
initiate payment.

4.5. Provide supporting documentation of allowable costs that may include,
but is not limited to;

4.5.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

4.5.2. Receipts for purchases and other proof of expenditures, as
applicable.

4.5.3. Timesheets and/or time cards signed by-both employee and
supervisor that support the hours employees worked for wages
reported under this contract.

4.5.3.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal
awards for salaries and wages must be based on
records that accurately reflect the work
performed.

4.5.3.2. Per 2 CFR 200.430 (iii) Labor records must
reasonably reflect the total activity for which each
employee is compensated, showing percentages
for time spent on activities under this contract and
all other activities {totaling no more than 100%).

4.6. The following back up documentation may also be requrested as needed:

4.6.1. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

4.6.1.1. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally
unallowable unless they are an integral part of a
conference grant or specifically stated as an
allowable expense in the FOA. Grant funds may
be used for light snacks, not to exceed $3.00
per person for clients.

4.6.1.2. Cost center reports, submitted only as
requested by the Department.

4.6.1.3. Profit and loss report, submitted only as ■
requested by the Department.

9. Add Exhibit C-3, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse pT ̂
Counselor Associalion d/b/a New Hampshire I L
Training Instilule on Addiclive Disorders Contractor Initials ^

RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01-A02 Page 3 of 5 Date 5/25/2022
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written.below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/25/2022

Date

—OecuSioM^by:

UAa S-
— Edm»04C«M42...

Nameii^atja s. fox

Title; Di rector

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders

5/25/2022

Date

OceuSlg'Md by:

CUA4102Ppgt4Ba-

Name: Linda Brewer

president BOD

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders Amendment #2

RFP-2021-BDAS.05-TRAIN-01-A02 Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

.  OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

[>ocu$lgAed byidyi

5/25/2022 ^

Date Name:«®^y" cuarino
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders Amendment #2

RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01-A02 Page 5 of 5
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Exhibit C-3, Amendment #2

Budget
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL & OTHER DRUGS

LorlA SblWnelte 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Connbsioaer 603-271.9564 1-800^04.0909

Pax: 603.271>6I05 TDD Accesi: I.800.735-2964 www.<lhhs.nh.80v/dcbc«/bdas

April 7. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Cornmission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to enter into a Sole Source
amendment to an existing contract with New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor
Association d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders (VC#170428-8001),
Concord, New Hampshire for training, education and programming for the Alcohol and Other Drug
Continuum of Care workforce, by increasing the price limitation by $135,000 from $461,900 to
$596,900 with no change to the contract completion date of June 30. 2022 effective upon
Governor and Council approval. 51.05% Federal Funds. 12.05% General Funds. 36.90% Other
Funds (Governor Commission),

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on August 26. 2020, item
#16.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Hems
within the price llmitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the price limitation is increasing by more than 10%
of the original contract amount with no change to the contract completion date. The additional
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration State Opioid Response grant
funding was not awarded to the Department in time to neither Include the additional grant funding
In the original contract, nor competitively procure: The additional education and training
components in the amendment are toeing added to services that the Contractor Is currently
providing.

The purpose of this request is to provide additional high-quality competency and skills-
based professional development activities that address the needs of the State's Alcohol and Other
Drug Continuum of Care system workforce.

New Hampshire lacks the workforce capacity to provide needed Alcohol and Other Drug
Continuum of Care system workforce prevention; early-intervention; treatment; and recovery
support services to meet the growing need for services. High turnover rates; worker shortages;

The Deporiment of Health and Human Seruicee' Mission is to join communities ond/omiliet
• in prooiding opportunities for citizens to achieve heollh and independence.
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and the Horwrabla Coundl
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an aging workforce; Inadequate compensation; and stigma have created a workforce crisis in the
field. The continued improvement and transformation of the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum
of Care system and integration with primary and behavioral healthcare depend entirely on a
workforce that is adequate in size, as well as trained and supported, to meet the needs of
individuals who seek substance use disorder treatment services.

The Contractor provides training to the Partnership for Success worWorce. which includes
Student Assistance and Substance Misuse Prevention professionals. The Contractor also
provides the scholarships to national training events for the Partnership for Success workforce.
The Contractor will also be conducting a two (2)-day virtual symposium on State Opioid Response
grant-related topics at no cost to all registrants.

The Department will monitor contracted services using post-event surveys and monthly
progress reports.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions of the original
contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department Is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, vital high-quality training
events will not occur, leaving an already under capacity and compromised workforce with fewer
opportunities for growth and learning. The missed opportunities would be detrimental to the
delivery of services and supports to individuals and families Impacted by substance misuse.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA # 93,243 FAIN SP020798 and CFDA #93.768 FAIN TI081685

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



DocuSign Envelope ID: 806BA452-D6A3-4CBD-94A6-8286A848D61B

05.95.92.920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92058501

$110,119 $0 $110,119

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92058501

$110,119 $0 $110,119

Subtotal $220,238 $0 $220,238

05-96.92-920610-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND

ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057501

$105,831 $0 $105,831

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057501

$105,831 $0 $105,831

Subtotal $211,662 $0 $211,662

05-95-92-920510-33950000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL. PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESS GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92052407

$15,000 $10,000 $25,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92052407

$0 $0 $0

Subtotal $15,000 $10,000 $25,000
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05-95.92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, NH STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057040

$15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057046

$0 $25,708 $25,708

2022 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svc 92057046

$0 $99,292 $99,292

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc 92057048
$0 $0 $0

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD

$0 $0 $0

Subtotal $15,000 $125,000 $140,000

Total $461,900 $135,000 $596,900
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute
on Addictive Disorders ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 26, 2020, (Item #16), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17 the Contract may be amended

upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$596,900.

2. Modify Exhibit 8. Scope of Services. Section 1, Statement of Work. Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph
1.2.2., Subparagraph 1.2.2.1., Part 1.2.2.1.1., to read:

1.2.2.1.1. A minimum of 64 live, professional development training events with in-person and
virtual attendance options, that include, but are not limited to skill building practice
series and targeted training for emerging issues, with at least six (6) events being
offered in the northern regions of NH.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services. Section 1, Statement of Work. Subsection 1.2., Paragraph
1.2.2, Subparagraph 1.2.2.2., Part 1.2.2.2.1.. to read:

1.2.2.2.1. A minimum of 59 live, professional development training events with in-person and
virtual attendance options, that include, but are not limited to skill building practice
series and targeted training for emerging issues, with at least six (6) events being
offered in the northern regions of NH.

4. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.15., to read:

1.15. The Contractor shall administer a process to award scholarships through September
30, 2021, to individuals for whom cost to attend SOR-funded trainings and/or SOR-
related training events is a barrier; ensuring final determination of awards are approved
by the Department.

5. Modify Exhibit 8, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work by adding Subsection 1.23 to
read:

1.23. The Contractor shall conduct a two-day virtual symposium for up to 350 participants.
The Contractor shall:

1.23.1. Ensure each day of the virtual symposium has a duration of at'least three (3)
hours;

1.23.2. Collaborate with the Department to determine training topics.

1.23.3. Collaborate with the Department to identify and obtain qualified presenters for

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive'Disorders Contractor Initials

RFP.2021.aDAS-05-TRAIN-01-A01 Page 1 of4 Date
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both days.

1.23.4 Market the two-day' symposium.

1.23.5. Manage session content.

1.23.6. Provide all logistics for the event.

1.23.7. Ensure the event is available at no cost to all registrants.

1.23.8. Ensure the event takes place before September 30, 2021.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment'Terms, Section 3., to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
Specified in Exhibits C-l, Amendment #1 Budget through Exhibit C-2, Amendment #1
Budget.

3.1 Payment for Partnership for Success grant activities referenced in Exhibit 8. Scope
of Services, Section 1. Statement of Work, Paragraph 1.1.2. shall be on a cost
reimbursement basis for allowable activities through June 30, 2021.

3.2. Payment for NH State Opioid Response grant activities referenced in Exhibit B,
Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work. Paragraph 1.1.3. shall be on a
cost reimbursement basis for allowable activities through September 29, 2021.

7. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-1, Amendment #1 Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein..

8. Modify Exhibit C-2. Budget by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-2, Amendment #1 Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

•M

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders Contractor Initials'

RFP.2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01-A01 Page 2 of 4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/7/2021

-"OocuSlgna^ by:

foit

Director

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders

-OocuSICMd by:

4/7/2021

by:

Dale Name; Linda Brewer

Title. president bod

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Association dfb/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders Amendment #1

RFP.2021-BDAS-0&-TRAIN-01-A01 Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

4/8/2021

Date Name, cathenne Pinos

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Do<uSnp^ by:

Date Name;

Title:

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders Amendment #1

RFP-2021-BOAS-05-TRAIN-01.A01 Page 4 of 4
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Exhibit C-1, Amendment#!

Budget

N»w Kampthlr* 0«partm«nt ol and Human Sarvicta

NH /Ucohel a Drug AbuM Couni«lors Association

BlddftPfogfwn Kamc: dWt New HsntpsNto Training Institutt on Aoeictlio Oisordors

8udg«l Rsq-josi for Training for Alcohol tnd Othor Oivg Worldorca

B«»dg«l Poriod: SFY»2t Juty 1. »2»Ouno 30. 2021

Una Itani

-Tots Program.Ceil .Contractor Snare / Mctcfi ' Fundad br OHHS ceraract anara
.Uiroet- Indtract - Total - Diroet Irtdiraet Total - ■Oiract Indlraei -Total

1. Total Sdarv/Waoas S 137.399.00 3 3 157.309.00 3 S7.CO0.00 3 3 57.000.00 3 100.309.00 3
2. Efneteroo BanoTu • J - 34.63a.g0 3 3 34.S2S.00 3 iisoaoo 3 3 12540.00 3 22.006. OO 3

■i 46.350.00 3 3 40.550.00 3 14.0CO.00 3  - 3 14.000.00 3 •94.550.00
4. Eoutomoftt:

-

i •loaoo 3 3 100.09 3  - 100.00 3 3 100.00 3
Raoar and Uaimanarea % loaoo 3 3 iw.eo Jt- - loaoo 3 3 10100 3- - 3
rimliaiafnaiHai lami i 3.ooaoo 3 3 1000.00 3 2.400.00 3 3 2.400,00 3 600,00 3 3 60100

S. SuooOos;
Educaaenal s 1.640.00 3 3 1.640.00 3 '400lOO 3 3 400.00 3 1.440.00
Lab
Pharmacv
Modieoi

S  2.010.00 3 3  2.610.00 $ i.4iaoo 3 3  I.410.00 3 1.20100
$  .. . - a.370.00 3 3  6.370.00 -3 -- • ■ 2.500.00 3 3  2,500.00 3 1670.00 3

7. Oecuoancir i  ■ 29.300.00 3 3  2S.300.00 3  • 15.900.00 3 3  15.90100 3 O.OOO.CO 3
a. Cunani Ejoansot .. . .

Tatoonena 3  - 1.S00.C0 3 3  1.500.00 3 700.00 3 3  7C0.C0 5 60100 3
■ i 200.00 3 3  200.00 3 . 3 3 200.00 3

Subscnptons 3  2.S&3.00 3 3  1553.00 3 150.00 3 3  150.00 3 2.403.00 3
Auda and LeoM s  i.4oaoo 3 3  I.400.00 3 eoaoo 3 3  eoo.oo 3 600.00 3
knsuranco s  3.ooaco 3 3  3.000.00 3 '1.200.00 3 3  1.200.00 3 2.400.CO
Board E:oans«s

9, So!t«>Ba 3: 2saoo 3 3  250.00 3 50,00 3 3  90.00 3 200.00 3
10. ManKtrofCommtancauorts 3  - sroaoo 3 3  5.700.00 3 1200.00 3 3  1200.00 3 2.50100 3 3  2.50100
11. Sun Edwcaoon and TraMrxi 3  i.xaoo 3 3  1.300.00 3 soaoo 3 3  500.00 3 60100
12. SubccK/acts/Apiavnanu 3  isocaoo 3 3  la.ooaoo 5  • 7.ooaoo 3 3  7.000.00 3 12.00100 3

C£ Awteotens 3. 473.00 3 3  475.00 3 75.00 3 3  75.00 3  40100 3
Poodf^anwo ftaruM 3  2.575.00 3 3  2.575.00 3 •  2.275.00 3 3  2.275.00 3 30100 3
Part>e»aru PortamMS hotdng ' S  1.500.00 3 3  i.5oaoo 3 1.500.00 3 3  1.500.00 3 3
Sctnlnhot .3 10.000.00 3 3  10.000.00 3 3 3 10.000.00 3
Oau Socuno 3  2.ooaoo 3 3  2.000.00 3 icoaoo 3 3  2 000.00 3
BOAS SfaO-atrVding Targitad 3- - 0.000.00 3 3  e.000.00 3 3 s 3 e.odoo 3

3  ' 35.000.00 3 3  25.000.00 3 3 3 25.000.00
SOR Mrtdn 3  - - -3.70e.00 3 3  5.70S.00 3 3 3 S.7C6.00 3
SOR Targatad 3  11.000.00 5 3  11,000.00 3 3 3 ' 11,000.00
SOR SendvtMgs 3 ' SOOOOO 3 3  • SOOOOO 3 3 - 3- 3
SOR SuOeensiei/Aflreamants 3  19.000.00 3 3  la.ooo.co 3. . 3 3 16 000.00 3

3  40«.«5AOO 3 3  4oa,63a.oo 3 125.000.00 3 3  1 25,00100 3 2S1.UA.OO 3 3  261.656.00

HH Aleettd Onig Abgso Counsders AMOcioiien
dfh/a Mow Hampshiro Training hstiado on Addiono Oboroon
RFP'2aM-BOAS<)S-TRAM41-A01
0MM C-1. ArrNndmant *1 Budgol
Paga tef i

Ccnaaoor Infejds IkhL
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Exhibit C-2 Amendment #2

Budget

New Hampshire Oopartmont of Health and Human Services

KH Alcohol t Otvg Abua* CouRMlor* Association
BiddcrtProgrom Nams: d/b/a Naw Ha/npshirs Trdrdng insdtui* on Addlctivs Otsordcn

Butlgat Request for Training for Alcohol and Other Drug Worldorce

Budget Period: SPY2022 July 20T1 >hms 30.20S

Total Program Cost Cointreeior Share/Match Funded tnr DHHS confrect share.

Une Item Direct " Indlreci Totd Direct Indlreet" Total Direct Indirect Total

t. Tout SrCaryTWaoej i -  168.674.00 3 3 166.674.00 3 57.000.00 3 3 57.000.00 3 111.67A00 3 3 111.674.00

2. EmokMe Benefits i 37.15100 3 3 37.153.00 3 12540.00 3 3 12540.00 3- 24.613.00 3 3 24.613.00

3. Cortsultants f. 37.55000 3 3 37.550.00 3 18.000.00 3 3 16000.00 3 19.550.00 S 3 19.550.00

4. Eavomeni:

Rvad f 100.00 3 3 100.00 3 100.00 S 3 100.00 3 3 3

Reoeir end Mortenance s lOOOO 3 3 100.00 3 100.00 3 3 100.00 3 . 3 3 .

PtRnssefOeoraciadan s 3.000.00 3 3 3.000.00 3 2.400.00 3 3 240600 3 eoD.oo 3 S 600.00

5- Supoiies; •-

Educational i 3.34000 3 3 2.340.00 3 900.00 3 3 900.00 5 •  1.440.00 3 3 1.440.00

Lab

Pharmacv

Medical

OfTic* S  2.110.00 3 3  Z110.00 3 910.00 3 3  910.00 3 1.200.00 3 3  1.20600

6. Travel $  737a00 3 3  7 370.00 3 2.500.00 3 3  2500.00 3 4,870.00 3 3  4.870.00

7. Occkoarwv s - 29.30a00 3 3  29.300.00 3 15.300.00 3 3  15300.00 3 14.0CD.OO 3 3  14.000.00

8. Ci^rrara E»eroei

Teleohorw -.3 1 soaco 3 3  ' 1.SOOOO 3 7CO.OO 3 3  70600 3 800.00 3 3  800.00

Postage S  20000 3 3  200.00 3 • 3 3 3 200.00 3 3  200.00

Subscrioiions S  2SS300 3 3  1553.00 3 150.00 3 3  15600 3 2.401C0 $ 3  2403.00

Audit arag Leod S  1.40000 3 3  1.400.00 3 600.00 3 3  600.00 3 800.00 3 3  800.00

fetsuranee S  X60000 3 3  1600.00 3 1.200.00 3 3  1.200.00 3 2400.00 3 3  2400.00

Board Emrtsos

9. Software S  29ax 3 3  250.00 3 '  50.00 3 3  50.00 3 200.00 3 3  .200.»

10. Marketino/Commuticotiens s  s.7oaoo 3 3  • 5.700.00 3 1.20600 3 3  3.200.00 3 2S06W 3 3  2500.00

11. Sttf Education and Trainisa S  1.3CQ.OO 3 3  1.300.00 3 500,00 3 3  SOO.CO 3 800.00 S 3  800.00

12. StAtconaacu/Aareamants s  is.ocaoo 3 3  15.00000 3 looaoo 3 3  3.000.00 3 120D6CO 3 3  12000.00

13. OVierfseecitic details mandaurvV

CE Aoolicadorts »  47100 3 3  475.00 3 7100 3 3  7100 3 400.00 3 3  400.00

Food/VersM Rental $  2.57100 3 3  2575.00 3 2275.00 3 3  227100 3 300.00 3 3  300.00

Particoara PortaVLMS nostino s  1.50000 3 3  1.500.00 3 1.50600 3 3  VSOO.OO 3 . 8- 3

Smiarshios •$ 12.00000 3 3  12000.00 3 . 3 3 3 12000.00 3 S  12000.00

Data Sactaicv S  2.00000 3 S  2000.00 3 2.00600 3 3  2CXI0.00 3 - 3 3

BOAS SidB-Buiidine Targeted S  3.00000 3 3  lOOOOO 3 - 3 3 3 3.000.00 3 3  1000.00

PPS Taroeted 3 3 3 3 3 3 . 3 s

SORAdmn S  8.679.00 3 3  6679.00 3 3 3 3 8.679.00 3 3  6679.00

SOR PtatfvOeoreciation S  2.00000 3 3  200000 3 3 3 3 2000.00 3 3  2000.00

SOR Oecuoanev i  1.664.00 3 3  1.664.00 3 3 3 3 1.664.00 3 3  1.664.00

SOR MarketinelCommiricatione S  30000 3 3  300.00 3 3 s 3 SOO.CO 3 S  30600

SOR Targeted 3 - 16.64100 3 3  16649.00 3 3 3 3 18649.00 3 3  18.649.00

SOR Smarstiios 3  23.00000 3 3  21000.00 3 3 3 3 21000.00 3 3  23.00600

SOR Cortracts/Mreemerts 3  4500000 3 3  45.000.00 3 . 3 3 3 41000.00 3 3  45.000.00

TOTAL 1  440.242.00 3 • 3  - .44024200 3 123,00600 3 3  12100600 313.24200 3 3  3112A200

Indirect As A Percent o< Direct

NH Alcohol Drug Ahuse Coutsalors Associatjan

d^a New Hampshire Training hstKute or> Addfcthre I
RfP-202l-e0AS-0S-TRAtl-0t-A01

E;dtiDii C-2. Amandment ti Budget
Pagei of >
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DmsiON FOR BEHAViORAL HEALTH

l« PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-n-9544 I-<004S}:3349Eil9S44

Fei: 603-271-4332 TDD Accm: I-800-73S.2964 www.dhhi.nh.fov

August 5, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, Ne;w Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, on
behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to enter into a contract with
New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association d/b/a New Hampshire Training
Institute on Addictive Disorders (VC#TBD]. Concord, New Hampshire In the amount of $461,900
for the provision of a high-quality competency and skills-based training program with the option
to renew for up to two (2) additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through
June 30. 2022. 36.74% Federal Funds, 15.58% General Funds, and 47.68% Other Funds
(Governors Commission Funds).

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS <100% Other Funds)

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $110,119

2022 ' 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 3110,119

Subrofaf $220,238

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPt OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. MHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $105,831

2022 102-500731 • Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $105,631

Subtotal $211,662

Tht Otportfiitnt o/HtOllh end Human Seruieet' Miuion is to Join eommunitUs ond/omiliu
in providingcpporlunltUt (or tUistns io ochitvo htaUK and indtptndtnc*.
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06-9B-92-920510-33950000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESS GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State Fiscal
Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Total

Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $15,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 SO

Subtotal $15,000

06-96-92-920510.70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, NH STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job NumtMf

Total
Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $15,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 920570040 $0

r
Subtotal $15,000

Tptal $461,900

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide a high-quality competency and skills-based trainlr\g
program that addresses the needs of Ihe State's prevention, early-intervention, treatment, and
recovery supports workforce. The Contractor will deliver high quality training to Improve the ability
of Alcohol and Other Onjg supports and service provrders to provide quality, outcome-supported
services to individuals and families.

New Hampshire lacks the workforce capacity to provide needed Alcohol and Other Drug
prevention, early-intervention, treatment, and recovery support services to meet the growing need
for services. High turnover rates, worker shortages, an aging workforce, inadequate
compensation, and stigma have created a workforce crisis In the field.

The continued Improvement and transformation of the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care
system and integration with primary and behavioral healthcare depend entirely on a workforce
that is adequate in size, as well as trained and supported, to meet the needs of individuals who
seek substance use disorder treatment services. Additionally, the necessary knowledge base for
providing Alcohol and Other Drug services has Increased dramatically over the past several years.

In 2019, the NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Oargs. in partnership with service
providers and other key stakeholders, identified data-driven priorities to comprehensively address
New Hampshire's addiction crisis. The three (3)-year plan provides a framework to move New
Hampshire forward in a direction that creates an outcomes-based approach that continues to
build on well-coordinated efforts across Ihe Continuum of Care System.
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The Department will monitor contracted sen/ices through regularly scheduled meetings, the
submission and review of monthly program reports and by using the foliowing performance
measures;

>  The Contractor will collect a completed evaluation sheet from no less than 85% of
participants who attend a training event.

•  The Department will monitor performance of the contract by trainee satisfaction survey
results that reflect an 85% or higher rating of trainee eatisfaction through evaluation
results submitted.

The Department selected the Contractor through a.competitive bid process using a Request for
Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from 5/26/2020 through 6/24/2020.
The Department received two (2) responses that were reviewed and scored by a team of qualified
individuals. The Scoring Sheet Is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions. Section 1. Revisions to
Form P-37. General Provisions, Subsection 1.1. of the attached contract, the parties have the
option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council
approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request. New Hampshire's Alcohol
and Other Drug workforce may be unaware of the most current and efficacious Information and
research on support services and treatment for substance use disorders. The result could lead
to the provision of substandard treatment for people with alcohol and other drug issues and may
result in a worWorc© that is unable to fulfil continuing education credits needed to meet, complete
and sustain llcensure and certification requirements.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFOA#93.959/FAIN#TI083041. CFDA #93788/FAIN TI081685. and
CFOA 93.243/FAIN SP020796

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available. Genera] Funds
will not t>e requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Scoring Sheet

Training for Alcohol and Other Drug
(AOD) Workforce

RFP Namo

Bidder Name

1.
Alia rum

2.
NHADACA

3.

•4.

5.

6.

7.

RFP.2021 -BDAS-OS-TRAIN

RFP Number Reviewer Names

Heidi Young. Prgrm. Planning end
Review Spec.

PatB/Fall

Maximum

Point#

Actual

Points

390 2S8

390 328

380 0

390 0

390 0

390. 0

390 0

2.

3;

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

OlMa Afthar. Program Assl t

. Linda Padcer. Clinical Services

PrgmvSpec.lV

Shannon Ouinn. Program Spec.lV

Laurie Heath. Busn. Admin 111
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FORM NUMBER M7 (version (2/H/30I9)

SBbJeci:_Training for Alcohol and Othc* Drug (AOD) Workforce (R7P-202I *80AS-OS-TRAIN-0))

Woiicc: Thil tftecmcnt end >11 or lu xttchmcnu thill become pohllc upon tubmiuion (o Govcrnof end
Executive Council for ipprovBl. Any infornutiou that is ptiviic, conri<)<nii>l or proprietary mutl
be clearly Memined to the agency and agreed (o in wrliing prior to signing ibc contract.

ACREEMtiNT

The Scale of New Hampthire and the Conrricior hereby muiiully agree as follows:

CCNERAL PROVISIONS

I.I Stste Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Hcnun Services

1.2 State Agency Address

I29rieitani Street'

Concord. NH 03)01-BIS?

1.3 Contractor Name

J^cwJJazDpsbifc Alcohol &nd Drug Abuse Counselors
Associaiion d/b/a New Hampshire Training (nstitulc
on Addictive Disorders

1.4 Contraciirr Address

130 Pembroke Road. Suite 100
Concord, NH 03301

I.S Conuacior Phone
Number

(603)225-7060

1.6 Account Number

05-095-092-920510-3382
(15-095 092-9205I0.3384

05.095-092-920510-3395

05-095-092-920510-7040

1.7 Completion Date \

June 30.2022

1.8 Price limiiition

S461.900

1.9 Comticiing OfTicer for State Agency

Nathan D. White,"Dircvtor

I.IO Suie Agency Telephone Number

(60))27l.96)t

1.11 Contractor Sigrulure 1.12 Name and Title of Coniracioc Signatory

hcCU'<fL PntSidfA-'t
1.13 Sute Agency Sigfutori' i ,

l"-^ Daic:/7^;iO
1.14 Name aitd Title ofSutc Agency Signatory

1.( Appriival by the N.H. l^ancieni »>f Adniinisiratinn. Division of Persnnncl (tf tti>i>!n.-aytle)

Bv: Director. On*

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General {Form. Siibit.nrvc and FxecoiioiO OfnppUcnhIt)

08/10/20

1.17 Approval by Ihc Govcfm«r jnd H.^cculivc 0:-un;*i"l f»/uopliifthlv)

O&C hem number Ti&C Meeting Oaic:

rftgc 1 of 5
Conuacior Iniiials

DateWf/yZ^^
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The SiMe of New
Hampshire, ociiny through ihc agency idenlified in block 1.1
("Stale"), engages coniractor identified in block 1.3
("Coniiiclor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, idcnlined and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is iftcorporatcd
herein by reference ("Services").,

y EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Norwilhsianding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agrecmeni. and all obligations of the parties hcreunder. shall
become cffcetivc on the date the Covcmor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
ihall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the Slate Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effcciivc Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences-the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, oil Services performed by the Conuactor prior to
the Efrcclivc Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of (he
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not.bccomc.
cffeciive. the State shall haye_no,liability lo the Coniracior,
including wiilioul limitation, any obligation .to pay the
Conuactor for any costs incurred or Services j)crformed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Dote
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwith-standing any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all gbligotion.s of the State hcreunder. including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hercundcr. are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for (his Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole ur in
part. In no event shall (he State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated fimds. In the
event of a reduction or terminaiion of appropriated funds, (he
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor rioticc of such reduction or (erminaiion.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICET-RICF. limitation/
payment.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and tcrnss oipaymcnt
are ideniincd and more particularly described In EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by rcfctcncc.
5.2 The payment by the Slate of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor iir the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Coniroctor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves (he right to offset from any amounts'
o(hcr%vise payable to lite Contractor urrdcr this Agreement those
liquidated amount.* required or permitted by N.H. RSA $0".!
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision oflaw.
5.4 Norwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and norwithstanding unexpected circumstances. In no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hcreunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COM PLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND regulations/ EQUAL EMPLOyMENT
OPPORTUNITV.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable siaruies, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligoiion or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil righu and equal
employment oppranunlty law.*. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, (he Contractor

.shall.comply.with all.fcdcnil.c.Tcculivc.ordcrs,.rulcs. regulations-
and statutes, and with any rules, reguladons and guidelines as-the
Slate or the United States issue to implcrrtcni these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with alt applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex. handicap, sexual
urieniation, or notional origin and will take DfTirmativc action (u
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of (he Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofasceiiainingcompliance withal) rules, regulations
and orders, and (he covenants, terms and conditions of (his
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor .shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable lows.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block i .7, (he Coniracior shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any pcison who is a State employee
or ofTicioI. who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement, This
provisior) shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in jjlock 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In (he event of any
dispute concerning the Imcrpretaiion of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 3 of 5
Coniracior Iniiials ,
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8, EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or n>orc of Ihc following ecu or omissions of <hc
Contrector shall consiltute an evcnl of default hcreundcr ("Bveni
of-Defauli"): ■

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure (0 submit any repon required hereundcr; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
(akc any one, or more, or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a wrinen notice speci^ng the Evcr>t of
Default and requiring it to be rcirtedicd within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser apecification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days aRcr giving the
Conlroctor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all paymcnu to be made under this
Agreement and ordering (hat the portion of the contract price
which would olhcfwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period'from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
6.2.3 give (he Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
DcfBuli and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to '.he Contractor any damages the Siote suffers by'reason of
any Event of Default; ond/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement b.s brcnchcd. imninBie the
Agrcemeni and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by Ihc Sutc to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to (hat Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Dcfuuli. No ettpress failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any furihcr or other Event of
Default on the pan of (he Contractor.

9. termination.

9.1 Norwithsianding paragraph 8, (he State may. at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any rca.son. in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to (he Conirarior.thal
(he Stale is cicrcising its option to terminaie the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early terminaiion of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of (he Services, the
Cnoiractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting OfTicer, not later iKaji fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination., a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and (he contract price earned, to
and including the date of tcrminatiort. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of (he Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the aiiochcd
EXHIBIT 6. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Cottirnctor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services ur>der (he
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

preservation.
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
informaiion and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reasonof. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
flics, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,'
letters, mcmorando, papers, and docqmcnij, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Slate or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be (he property of the State, and
shall be relumed to the State upon dcrnand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter VI-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data ixqulrtt
. prior wrinen a pproval of the State.

n. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In Ihc
performance of this Agreement the Contractor i.t in all respects
in independent contractor, and is rscither an agcni nor ah
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofTicers. employees, agents or members shall tuvc authority (o
bit>d the State or receive any benefits, workers' compcvuition or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELF-CATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or oihcrwUc transfer any.
inicrtsr in this Agreement without the prior urittcn notice, which
shall be provided to (he State at least fifteen (IS) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment, "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third parly, together with its afTiliatcs, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or rrtore of the
voting shares or similar equity inicresis, or corhbir>eJ voting
power of the Coniracior. or (b) (he sale of all orsubsuniially all

. of the assets of (he Contractor.
12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by (he
Contractor without prior wriiicn notice and consent of the Sutc.
The Stele is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subconiraci or an assignment agrccmcni to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless oiherwi.te exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
omccrs and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabiiiiies and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims osscned against
the State, its ofTicers or erttployccs. which arise out of (or which
may be claimed <o arise out oO (he acts or omission of the

Page 4 of 5
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Conirtcior. or tubconirac(ors. including but noi limited lo (he
negligence, recklcis or inicniional conduct. The Stale shall noi
be liable for any costs incurred by the Conirocior arising under
(his paragraph 13. Noiwiihsianding (he foregoing, nothing herein
conuined shall be deemed (o consiiiute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of ihe State, which immunity is hereby reserved lo ihe
Slate. This covenant' in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agrcemeni.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its. sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subconiracior or assignee (o obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.) commerciaf general liabiliiy insurance against oil claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than SI.000.000 per occurrence and S2,000.000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subjeci to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80*/* of the whole replacement value of (he property.
14.2 The policte.s described in subparagraph (4.1 herein shall be
on poli^forms end endorsemenis approved for use in (he State.
of Nc>v Hampshire by the N.H. Deportmcni of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in ihc State of New Hampshire.
(4.3 The Contractor shall furnish to (he Contracting Officer
ideniified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificoicfs) of
insurai>ec for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Coniraciorshall also furnish lo the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9. or his or her successor, ccnificaicfs) of insirrancc
for all renewHl(.e) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ccrtlfiCBle(s) of insurance nr>d any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this igTccmeni, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("tyorkers'
Conipensaiion "J.
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subjeci to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers* Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in bloek 1.9, orhisor her successor, proofof Workers'
Cumpensoiion in the nvanncr described in N.H. RSA chapter
28)*A and any applicable renewalfs) thereof, which shall be
iiiachcd and arc incorporated herein by reference. The Stale
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Conirictor,
which might arise' under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compcnsdlion laws in connection wilh the
performance of the Services under (his Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a pany hereto to the other party
shall be deemed lo have been duly delivered or given at (he time
of mailingby ccnified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Stolu
Post Office addressed to the panics at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. Thi.t Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by on iristrumcni in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only aOer approval uf such amendmeni,
waiver or discharge by (he Governor and Executive Council of
ihe Stale of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law. nile or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, inicrprcied and construed in accordance with the
taws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and -
inures 10 the benefit of the parties and ihcir respective successors
and assigns.' The wording used in (his Agreement is the wording
chosen by the panics to express their mutual inteni, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any aciiont.arising out.of.(hi$.A£rccrocnt.sbal].be.brougbt.aad-

.maintained in New Haznpsbire Superior Court which shall have .
exclusive jurisdiction (hereof.

19. CONFMCTJNG TERMS. In the event of a connict

between the Icrms of this P*37 form (as' modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or auachmenis and amendment thereof, (he terms of (he
r-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A)xha1l conirol.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not imcnd to
benefit any third panics and this Agreement shall not be
i'Onsirued to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout (he Agreemcni are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in ihc
intefprciation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions SCI fonh in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. lo the event any ofihe provisionsof this
Agrccnscni are held by a coun of competent jurisdiction lo be
contrar)' to any stare or federal law, the renuining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and cfTeci.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMEiNT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall he
deemed an originol, consiiiuics the entire agreement and
understanding between ihe parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Dale/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows;

3.3. The parlies may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon salisfaclory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and required
governmental approval.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are.subject to.the same .contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance vrith those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage, the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and lake corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

New Hflmpshiro Alcohoi and Oajq Abuse EthioiiA ContrMUv tnlil^s
Counsetors Assocleilon d/b'a

New HampihUe TraMng Intifiuia on AddlclNe Disvdeo . I /
RFP.2021-eDAS-0S-TRAIN0l Papa 1 ofl Dale ^ n
cuoHxsnnei*
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

.1.1. The Contractor shall ensure services in this agreement are available to;

1.1.1. The Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Continuum of Care workforce,
statewide.

1.1.2. Professionals providing services specific to the Partnership for Success
(PFS) grant, as identified by the Oepariment including, but not limited to:

1.1.2.1. Student Assistance Professionals.

1.1.2.2. Substance Misuse Prevention professionals.

1.1.3. Individuals providing services specific to the State Opioid Response
—(SOR) grant as-ldenl(fied by the Deparlmenl-including.-bul-not limlted-to:-

1.1.3.1. SCR grant-funded contractors.

1.1.3.2. Families including, but not limited to. the nuclear family,
grandparents and other relatives impacted by substance use
disorder (SUO).

1.1.3.3. Programs working with children impacted by familial substance
use.

1.2. The Contractor shall administer a multi-component training program which
includes, but is not limited to:

1.2.1. Developing a training calendar that offers a systematic approach to
meeting credentialing and continuing education requirements across the
AOD Continuum of Care system, that includes (he following training
suites:

1.2.1.1. Prevention;

1.2.1.2. tntervenlion;

1.2.1.3. Treatment; and

1.2.1.4. Recovery.

1.2.2. Planning, coordinating and providing, training opportunities; both irr-
person and through eLearning platforms; which cover core, intermediate,
and advanced levels of instruction; are approved by the Department; and
Include, but are not limited to:

1.2.2.1. In stale fiscal year 2021:

1.2.2.1.1. A minimum of 58 live, professional development training
events with in-person and virtual attendance options,
including, but not limited to skill building practice series and

New Hsrr^shlrB Alcohol and Dr\jQ Abuse ' ExtvbilB - Coniractcv Iniiia's
CounaetOf-AssodaUoo d/b/d New Hampshire
Training Insb'luto on Addictivo Disorders
RFP-2021'BDAS-OS-TRAIN.D1 Pad^ 1 o19 Dale ?kl2/!ZC>
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

targeted training for emerging issues, with at least six (6)
being offered In the northern regions of NH.

1.2.2.1.2. A minimum of five (5) new, on-demand weblnars. added to
the existing library of weblnars.

1.2.2.1.3. A minimum of four (4) kinship family trainings.

1.2.2'.1.4. A minimum of six (6) Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
trainings, as detailed in Subsection 1.3.

1.2.2.2. In state fiscal year 2022;

1.2.2.2.1. A minimum of 54 live, professional development training
events with in-perspn and virtual attendance options
including, but not limited to skill building practice series and
targeted.trai ning.for.emerging.issues._with.at.least.six.(6)—

-  • being offered in the northern regions of NH.

1.2.2.2.2. A minimum of five (5) new. on-demand weblnars, added to
the existing library of weblnars.

1.2.2.2.3. A minimum of eight (8) Bureau of Drug and Alcohol'
Services trainings, as detailed in Subsection 1.3.

1.2.3. Providing participants with training materials.

1.2.4. Ensuring training is designed for different adult learning styles and levels
of knowledge.

1.2.5. Ensuring training Is provided by qualified presenters, as approved by the
Department.

1.2.6. Providing integrated. eLearning tools, when appropriate.

1.2.7. Providing participants with approved Continuing Education Credits,
applicable to the training audience and cerlificalion needs.

1.2.8. Providing participants with continuous access to a library of a minimum
of 50 on-demand weblnars.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide the training space, materials, and logistical
support for two (2) trainings on a quarterly basis, at no cost to participants,
utilizing trainers provided by the Department, which include:

1.3.1. The Initial Training on Addiction and Recovery, a six (6) hour, in-person
training.

1.3.2. Families and Addiction, a three (3) hour. In-person training.

1.4. The Contractor shall ensure training sessions are consistent with the required
professional standards and core competency needs of the workforce which
include, but are not limited to, relevant training for:

New Hampshire Alcohol and Ou9 Abuse Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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1.4.1. Certified Prevention Specialists (CPS).

1.4.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselors (LADC).

1.4.3. Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselors (MLADC).

1 .'4.4. Certified Recovery Support Workers (CRSW).

1.5. The Contractor shall collaborate with subject matter experts, as directed(and
identified by the Department, to develop and improve training curricula and
content to meet the needs of (he target audiences for PFS and SOR grants.

1.6. The Contractor shall monitor attendance at each event to ensure individuals

attend for the full length of the training in order to obtain continuing education
-certincates which Includes,.but is not limited to:

1.6.1. Ensuring positive verification of attendance at each event for each
participant using a'method'approved'by the'Oepartment.

1.6.2. Complying with (he requirements of the New Hampshire Department of
Information Technology for tracking online attendance.

1.7. The Contractor shall identify and engage qualified presenters to deliver
training opportunities, as approved by the Department.

1.6. The Contractor shall market training events utilizing methods approved by the
Department which include, but are not limited to:

1.6.1. Maintaining an email list and sending email notifications to the AOD
workforce and identified training audiences.

1.8.2. Maintaining and publishing an events calendar on the Contractor's
website..

1.8.3. Publishing and distributing a newsletter to the AOD workforce and
identified training audiences on a quarterly basis.

1.9. The Contractor shall develop and utilize an evaluation-plan, process and
tool(s) to evaluate each training event, as approved by the Department and
in accordance with each accrediting body, that includes, but is not limited to:

1.9.1. Collecting and analyzing participant evaluation responses for each
training session.

1.9.2. Compiling and analyzing aggregate data from evaluation responses no
less than every six (6) months.

1.9.3. Sharing evaluation data with the Department to ensure the program is
meetings its goals and for continuous quality improvement of the training
program.

1.10. The Contractor shall utilize a learning management system to monitor and
manage the training program. The system shall comply with QolT
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requirements and include, but not be limited to:

1.10.1. An Administrative Dashboard that includes, but is not limited to. the ability
to:

1.10.1.1. Receive and track information that includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.1.1.1. Registration and payment for trainings.

1.10.1.1.2. Date and title for each training session;

1.10.1.1.3. Number of registrations, attendees and individuals on
waitlists for individual trainings.

1.10.1.1.4. Information for each participant, including:

l!l0.1.1.4.1. Name of participant;

^lTl0.-1r1-.4r2. Job title:

1.10.1.1.4.3. Name of participant's agency or organization;

1.10.1.1.4.4. Mailing Address;

1.10.1.1.4.5. Email address; and

1.10.1.1.4.6. Fees paid by participant and/or agency.

1.10.1.2. Send and receive training evaluations to and from participants.

1.10.2. A Parlicipant Portal that includes, but is not limited to;

1.10.2.1. The ability to register and pay for training.

1.10.2.2. Personal profiles that allow participants to access training
summaries, and continuing education certificates based on
attendance.

1.11. The Contractor shall work closely with the Department to support current and
emerging initiatives for improving the State's system of care including, but not
limited to:

1.11.1. Developing training materials on particular topics for target populations,
as needs arise, at the request of the Department.

1.11.2. Adjusting activities and staffing to meet Department needs and the needs
of the workforce.

1.11.3. Updating training topics and classes as scientific evidence evolves.

1.12. The Contractor shall provide access to training for Bureau of Drug and
Alcohol Services employees, when space Is available, for any scheduled
training session, at no additional cost.

1.13. The Contractor shall Identify the needs of the workforce and ensure trainings
offered ere not duplicalive of existing trainings offered through other venues

New HamptWre Alcohol and Drug Abuse Exhibit 8 ConitBcJOf Iniliats /^;J_
Counselor Association d/b/o New Hampshire / /
Training Instrtute on Addictive Disorders
RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN.01 Page4or9 Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID: 806BA452-D6A3-4CBD-94A6-8286A848D61B

DocuSign Envelope ID: E5AO9897.8101-4E9C-BC16.22OA8E5B2E6F

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for AJcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

by:

1.13.1. Meeting reguiarty with the Department to seek input on training needs in
support of ongoing initiatives and other emerging needs.

1.13.2. Collecting and analyzing participant evaluation feedback for individual
trainings and on a bi-annual basis.

1.13.3. Soliciting feedback from participants.- professionals and key stakeholders
regarding the training needs of the NH AOD workforce.

1.13.4. Participating In workforce development education and training
committees to leam what other agencies are intending to offer and to
inform the agencies of the training plans.

1.13.5. Attending licensing and certification board meetings to identify provider
needs — — —

171376. Actively engaging in the planning of collaborative conferences.

1.14. The Contractor shall administer a process to award scholarships, in an
amount not less than $10,000 for each state fiscal year to NH AOD
Continuum of Care service providers to attend training events, as approved
by the Oeparlment, which may include, but are not limited to events
sponsored by:

1.14.1. AdCare Educational Institute of New England.

1.14.2. The New England Addiction Technology Transfer Center (ATTC).

1.14.3. Prevention Technology Transfer Center (PTTC) Networl^.

1.15. The Contractor shall administer a process "to award scholarships in the
amount of not less than $2,000 for slate fiscal year 2021 to individuals for
whom cost to attend SOR-funded trainings is a barrier, ensuring final
determination of awards is approved by the Department.

1.16. The Contractor shall maintain a web presence for the trainings provided on
the Contractor's website, Nvww.nhadaca.crg, which shall Include, but is not
llmlled to:

1.16.1. A calendar of training events offered or sponsored.

1.16.2. The ability for participants to register for training.

1.16.3. Access to all eLeaming opportunities offered through this program.

1.17. The Contractor may collect registration fees from training participants,
excluding training participants attending the Initial Training on Addiction and
Recovery and Families and Addiction quarterly trainings for training expenses
that exceed the amount funded by the Department.

1.18. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of 85% of.revenue generated fi'O'T^
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registralion fees collected are reinvested to enhance the training program, as
approved by the Department.

1.19. The Contractor shall increase sustainabiiity of the training program by
leveraging resources lo increase and expand the number of training
opportunities offered.

1.20. The Contract shall conduct a project kick-off meeting with the Department
and identified project staff within 20 business days of the coritract effective
date to review:

1.20.1. Contract requirements:

1.20.2. Initial work plan; ar>d

1.20.3. Initial timelines.

'1:21: The'ContractOr'Shall provide"a"Woirk'plan'ahdtirrieline'to'th"e"Depaftm^t that"
defines the goals, objectives, activities, deliverables, and due dates to the
Department for approval, ensuring:

1.21.1. The inilial work plan and timeline are provided to the Department within
10 business days of the project kick-off meeting.

1.21.2. Changes to work plans or timelines are approved by the Department prior
to implementation.

1.22. The Contractor shall provide an evaluation to the Department for approval
within 10 business days following the kick-off meeting that specifies how
trainings will be evaluated.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

•  2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parlies.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all conridentlal data related to this Agreement
in accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. , The Contractor shall provide written monthly progress reports to the
Department regarding accomplishment of contract goals and performance
measures.- The Contractor shall ensure reports include, but are not limited
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to:

3.1.1. A summary of the work performed during the previous month.

3.1.2. Encountered and foreseeable key issues and suggested mitigation
strategies for each.

3.1.3. Scheduled trainings for the.following quarter.

3.1.4. A summary of evaiualion results from services provided during the
previous month.

3.1.5. Updates to the work plan.

3.2. The Contractor shall complete and submit an annual report no later than 60
days after the end of each state fiscal year that includes, but is not limited to:

3.2.1. A complete program overview.

3.2.2. Accomplishments towards"program goals"5nd"^7fdr"rnance measuTes.

3.2.3. End of year financial reporl, Including revenue reinvested,

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall colled a completed evaluation sheet from no less than
85% Of participants who attend a training event.

4.2. The Department will monilor performance of the contract by trainee
satisfaction survey results that reflect an 85% or higher rating of trainee
satisfaction through evaluation results submitted.

4.3. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department
to enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program
delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.4. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data.

4.5. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department In a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees thai, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein,
the State has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
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Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Conlractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date, a detailed descriplion of the communication access and language
assistance services they will provide to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services to persons with limited English proficiency,
people who are deaf or have hearing loss, are blind or have low vision,
or who have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall Include the following statement, 'The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract.
_with_the-State,of-N8w-Hampshir©..Oepartment-of-Heallh.and-Human.
Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New Hampshire-
and/or such other funding sources as were availsbie or required, e.g.. the
United States Department of Health and Human Services.'

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the conlracl shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or
use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to;

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials- produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that Include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1*. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and al) income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records shall be maintained In accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufTiciently and property reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
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to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of In-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for relenllon hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services,
and any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports
and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as. by the terms of the
Contract-are tobeperformedafter-theendofthetermoMhisGontracl-end/or-

-  -survive the termination of the Contract) shatr terminate, provided however,
that if. upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall
disallow any expenses claimed by the Conlraclor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discration, to deduct the amount of
such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the
Contractor.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement Is funded by:

;  1.1. 36.74% Federal Funds

.1.1.1. Substance Abuse Prevention & Trealmenl Block Grant
(SAPTBG). as awarded on 10/1/19. by the Department of'Heallh
and Human Senrices. Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Admlnislration (SAMHSA). Center for Substance Abuse
Treatment. CFDA 93.959. FAIN TI083041.

1.1.2. NH State ppioid Response Grant (SOR). as awarded on 9/30/18,
by the Department of Health and Human Services. Substance
Abuse -and Mental Health Serw'ces Administration (SAMHSA).
Center for Substance Abuse Treatment. CFDA 93 786 FAIN
TI081665.. -

.  1.1.3. KiH PartfieTship for Su^ss Inriiative Grant (PFS2) as Bv^fded on
9/30/15. by the Department of Health and Human Servibes,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services AdrTiinisl.ralion'-
(SAMHSA). Center for Substance Abuse Prevention CFDA
93.243, FAIN SP020796.

.1.2. 47.68% Other Funds (Governor s Commission on Atchohol and Other ■
Drugs).

■  1.3. -15.58% General Funds.

2. For the purposes of this. Agreement, the Department has ..ideniified the
. ■ Contractor as a Contractor, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

3. payment shall .pe on 'a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
m.^rred In the .fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
.theapproved.line rtem. as specified in Exhibits 0-1,•Budget through Exhibit C-
2, Budget.

4,i Th.e Contractor shallisubmit an invoice in a form satisfactory to tpe Stale by the
twentieth (2Dth) working day of Uie follpwlng month, unless otherwise specified..^Ich identifies and requests reimbursernent for authorized expenses ItKurted
in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the Invoice Is completed, dated
and relumed to.the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices ishall be
net any other revenue received towards the services bilied in futfillment of this "
agreemehi.

4.1. ■ Baqkup documentation shall include, but Is noilimlied to:

4.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract. .
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4.1.2. Timesheets and/or lime cards signed by both employee and
supervisor that support the hours employees worked for wages
reported under this conlracl.

4.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal ewar;ds for
salaines and wages must be based on records thai accurately
reflect the work performed.

4.1.3. Per 2 CFR 200.430 (ill) Labor records must reasonably reflect the
total activity for which each employee is compen^ted. showing
percentages for time spent on activities under this contract and all
other activities (totaling no more than 100%).

4.2. The following backup documentation may also be requested as needed:
4.2.1. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

4.2.1.1. Per SAh^SHA .requirements, meals are generalty unallowabia
uriless they are an Integral part of a-conference-.grahtrorT
speciftcally staled as an allowable expense in the FOA :Granl

.  funds may be used for light snacks, not to exceed $3.00 per
person for clients.

4.2.2. Cost center reports, submitted only as requested by the
Department.

4.2.3. Profit and loss report, submitted only as requested by the
Department..

5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic sigr^ture and
emailed.to invQicesforconlracts@dhhs,nh.QOv. or invoices may be rhaile.d to:
Contract Manager for RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN
Department of Health and Human Services
Bureau of Drug & Alcohol Services

■  '105 Pleasant .Street, Main Bldg.. 3rd Floor North
^ Concord. NH 03301

6. The State shall make payment to ihe'Contractor within thirty. (30) days of receipt
of . each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and If
sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

. 7. ..The final Invoice shall be due to the Stale rx) later than forty (40) dayS after the
opnlracl cornpletioh date specified In Form P-37. General Provis.iQn.s Block 17
■Completion Date. ;;

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Se.rytces, In
compliance with funding requirements.
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9. The Con^ctor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be. withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of ̂ ^Iblt B, Scope of Services.

10. Notwlhstandlng anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld. In whole or In part. In the event
of rwn^mpliaoce with any Federal or Stale law. rule or regulation applicable
to the services prosdded, or It the said services or products have no.t been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

■  11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between Slate Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without

.. obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council;-if needed and-
-justrfied.- -- — • . ....

12. Audits

12.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
'' If any of the following conditions exist;

12.1.1. Condition A - The Cqniractor expended $750;000 or more in
federal funds received as.a subreciplent pursuant to 2 CFR.Part
200, during.lhe most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:26, l((-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of S1.000.000 or more. .

12.1.3. Condition 0 • The Contractor is a public company and required by
Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit
an annual.hnandai audit.

15.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
perforrned by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Deportrriont vyithin 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFRParl 20,0.
Subpart F of the Uniform Adminislrative.,R6qulrements. Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12.4. In addition to. and not In any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
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Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Wor1(force

EXHIBIT C

Cdntraclor shall be held liable for any slate or federal audit exceptions
artd shall retum to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been,
disallowed bedaub of such an exception.

Now H^pihlre Alcohol ond Drug Abu3u EchOii) C Controdor iTBtbis
CouHMlori AAsocislion (Vb/o New Hampshire

TralNflBTrisfifute 00 Addictiv® Disorders "O' i/- i/ioA
RFP.2021-'BDAS^-TRAIN-01 Poc«4c/4 .... Oats * T
Rev.ouoe/.l®
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CERTinCATlON REGARMNQ DRUQ^TtEE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTq

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 ol Ihe General Pfo>«tons agrees to conv>ly vviih ihe provisions of • •
.S«ct}on5515l«5160of(h80njg^reeWortplaceAdof1988(Pub.L. 100-690."ntte V. Sut>titJeD;.41
.U.S.C. 701 et sag.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's reprasentaUvo, as idenUfied In Socbohs
1.11 lend'1.12 of the General Provisions exocute (he following Cerlllicetion:

ALTERNATIVE I -FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT PP AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certificstlon is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Orug-Pree
Workplace Act of 1880 (Pub. L. 100-630. Tito V. Subtiila D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et saq.). The January 31.
1989 regulaUor^s were amended and published as Part (I of the May 25.1930 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), ̂  require certiflcaUon by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award..lhal Ihey wifl malnlain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the ■'
regulation provides that a orantee fayH;>y inference, sub-grantees arxJ sub-contractors) that is a State ''

..jpoy pepa^ent in each l^ In lieu <V ca^icales tw"
cach^nt during the fed^i fiscal year covered by ihe «rtjfiMiion. the certificaie set out beTow ls e
maiwd representation of fact up^ vrftich reliance Is placed when the agency, awards ihe'grani. False.
cert/flcBtioo or viototion of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or-
lerrnlnatJoft of grants, or government imdo suspension or dobarment. Cont/actora using this form should
send-liio:

CommiMionef
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street..

I  "Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. Tho-granteo oertifies that (! wB or will continue .to provide o drug-free workplace by:
1.1.' Pubiishing 0 statement rtottfying employeas that Ihe unlawful manufacture, dlstributidn,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and spedfying the actions thai wHl be taken agairtst employees for violation of such

^ . prohibition;
••1^. . esiat^hlngari.on90ing.,drug-freeewarenesspro9ramtolnfofm.employeesaboui .

. 1.2.1.' The.dangeraof drug abuse in the workplaoc;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace:

' 1.2.3. Any avellablo drug counsetrvg, /ohobililalion,.ond employee easistonoe programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties thai may be Imposed upon empioyoec for drug abuse vtolations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making ii a roquiroment that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the gronl be

given a copy of the statement r^uired by paragraph (a);
1.4. Not^ng.lbo.employoB In the fi talement required t>y paragraph (a) thai, OS a condilJoo of

em^ymenl under the grant, ihe'employee will
1.4.1'.- Abide by. the terms of Ihe statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of hfs Of her convlcllon for a.vioJaUon of a crtmlnal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such ' ' .
conviction;

1.5. Notifying Che agency In writing, within ten calendar days.after receiving notice under • .
subparegraph 1.4.2 from an emptoyee or otherwise receiving octual notice of euch conviction. -

'  Emple^rs of convicted ernployoos must provide notice, tnduding position tide,.to every grerit.
officer on whoM grant activtly the convicted employee was worklrvg. unless the Federei .agency' •

EvNbilp-CsriiiiutiMrBgardinoDruo'Freo l^crxlttjnjlUti;
WortJttoco R«^qmwiU ,

CUOfOCnionj" Piip9lol2.' . n "7r/UYO
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:has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
Idenliftcall^ numbei^s) of each affected grant;

. 1.6.- T^lng one ol the foCowing actions. wHNn ̂  calendar days of receiving noUce under
' Bub^agraph 1.4.2. with respect to ony employee who is so convicted
'  -1.6.1. • TaUng'approprtatepersonnelectionagatnstsuchanempioyaeVuptoandlndudino

' rterminatlpn. consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1673. oa
amended: <x

'1.6.2. Requiring suet) empioyae to particspaie satisfactorily in 8 drug abu^ assistance or
rehatillitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law onfofcoment, or other epproprieie agency:

1.7. Meklrig a good faith effort to contirue to maintain a drug-freo wodtplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2.1.3.1.4, i.S, and 1.6.

2. The grantee mpy lnsort In the space provided bctow the sitefs) for the performance of wodc done In
connection wHih the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city,' county, state, zip code) (list each location)

'Ch^VoTf'^ sre wb^iaoes on file that are not Identified here.

Vendor Name:

4/cJiofa.^ l)r^

Date Name: ^ /
Title:

Oil... . . E>hi&ll 0 ' CerlificsUon regirdine Drug fro* Vendor InUib
Worttplsce ReeulremenU P-t/-7/f7/i

OjJMCrwma Peg* 2 of 2 Owe ̂



DocuSign Envelope ID: 806BA452-D6A3-4CBD-94A6-8286A848D61B

DocuSign Envelope ID: E5A09897.BI01-4e9C-BCl6-22DABE5B2E6F

New Hftm'pBhlre.D«partm«fi1 o1 H«&Kh find Hunrifin SarvicM
EvblWtE

CERTIFICAHONREGARDINQ LQBBYIT^G

The Vendof Identified In Seciton 1.3 of Ihe General ProvJstona aQreea !o comply with the provtsiooe pi
..Soctlon 316 of PubScLew 101-121, Govetnment wide Guidance for New Restrictibris on Lobbying, end
. 31'U;S.C. 1352, end further egreee to have Ihe Contractor's represenlaUve. as identified in Sections 1.11
end '1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTTMENT OF EDUCATION . contractors
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate applicable program covered);
*T^ppr8ry;A88htence to Needy Famines under Thie iV-A
*Ch!ld Enforcement Program under TWe IV-D
'Social Services Glock-Grant Program under Title XX
'Medk^d Program under Title XIX
•Community,Services BlocK Grant under Title VI
■'Child Care. Davefopmeni Block Grant under TiOe IV '

tr^ underslfl'rMM cehlfies, to tf^ liesl of hb or hor knowledge er>d tMllef, lhs<:
1. No Federal appropriated funds have boon peidcrwiDbc pe'id by or on beholf of the undersigned, to

any person' for influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, e Mernber
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employoo of a Member of Coogr^s in

.  : connection with the 8w3rdir>g of any'Federel contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or'
modinc^on of any.Federel contract, gram, loan, or cooperative agreement (end. by specific mention
aub-grantee or sutxonl/actof).

2: If eny funds Other than Federal approprlaied funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for '.
Influencing or atlompdng to influence on officer or employee of any agency, o Member 6l Congress, ■
en officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
Federel oo'ntract, grant, loan, or cooperative egreement (and by specific mentior\ sub-grentee or But>-
contractor), thp undersigned sl^l comptele end submit Standerd Form LLL, (Disclosufe Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with Us instructions, oltachad end Iderulfled as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

- 3. The und^ign^ shall require that the language of this certification be inciudad in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (indudlng subcontracts.'sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, "and cooperat'iye agreements) and that ail sub-redpienis ohali certify end dbdoso ocoordingly. .

This certlficatior) be mated ai representation of fact upon which rollanco wee pieced when this transaction
was mode or entered Into. Submlssicm of this certification is e prerequisite for making or entering Into this
trensaction imposed by Section T3S2, TlUe 31, U.S. Code. Any person wtv falls to fi le the required
certification Shan be eub)ec( to a cmI penally o/ not less than $10,000 ar>d rK>i more than $100,000 for
each cuch failure. • • -

Vendor . . \

1r- ^■■■ZO?^D
Dale

ExNb't E - CaitlAcsOon RagsfOing Lot}tryir^ Vendor Initids

CuOMrs/iio'o ' ' n#go t of 1 ObuhF"
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CERTtRCATION RgQARDINO DEaARMENT. SUSPENSION .
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The VendorTdenttfied in S^ion 1.3 the Genefal Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of "
. Exaci/t/ye Office of the Prasidanl. Executive Order 12S49 and 45 CFR Part 76 roQarding Debarment. •'
Suspension, arid Other ResfkxulbUlty Matters, end further agrees to have the Contractor's
reprasantatiya. ssjdantifted in Sections 1.11 ar)d 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certiricadcn: - -

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By Gigni^.and submitting'this proposal (contract), the prospective primary partidpanl is providing the
certification set out befow.

2. The inabltfty of a person to provide Ihe cartiflcaiion required below wiO not nccassarfly result In donial
.of particfpalion In this covered transaction. If necess^. Ihe prospective partidpant shall submit an
ex^analior> of why it cannot provide the certiftcation. The certification or expldnallon will be
considered tn connection with the NH Depehmeni of Health and Human Services' (OHMS)
delormlnation vyhether'lo enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective pdmary
partidpant to fumish a certification or an exptanalion shall dtSQualtfv such person.from.participalton.In

. .thi| tmnapctipn, .,

3. The certlficetlon In this clause Is e material representation of fact upon which reliance was. pfsced
when OHMS detarmin^ to enter into this transaction. If It is later detennined that the prospective. -
pr^ary participant knchvingly r^ered en erroneous certification, In addition to other remedies -

■evalleble to the Federal Goverrvnent. OHHS may terminate this transaction for causa'or default.

4. The prospMUve primary particfpant sheo provide immediate written notice to the DHHS sger>cy to
whom this proposal (^Ired) H subminod if at any timo the prospective primary pertldpem learns
•thai its certinqatlorl'was erroneous when aubmltled or has t)ecoma errxmeous by'reason of chenged-
clrc^siances.

5. The terms ^covered transaction.* 'debarred,' 'suspended.' 'ineligible,'' 'lower tier covered
transaction,* *partlclpant.* 'person.* 'primary covered transaction.* 'principal,' 'proposal.' and
Voiuntarify excluded.' as usod in tTus dausb. have the moonings set out in (he OermilJons and .
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. ^e the

.  attdched defrnlilons.

6. "The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the ■
proposed covorod (rsnsectlon be entered into, it shall not Knowingly enter into 8r>y lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded - --
frorh poftidpetioh in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (hot It w3l lixlude (he
-dause Utied '(pertlficetlon Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineiigibuity end Voluntary Exduslqn •
Lower TierCoveradTronsactkms.* provided by DHHS, without modification. In aillower tier cov.ered .
transactions and In all eoCdtations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant In .a covered transaction may rely upon a coftiricaiion of a prospective participant In a '-
lower Har covered transactton that it is not do^nrad, suspended. Inoligtblo, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered trensactlon. unless It Knows that the cartificdtion Is erroneous. A participant may

' ' decide the method and frequency by which it determines the et^bility of its prirKipds. Each
partidparit may. but Is not requtr^ to, check ttie Nonprocurement U&t (of excludad parties).

9. N^lng contained In the forego'mg shaB be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and "

Ed«tdF-CtftirKstionRe9srdngOebarrnent.SiAper\sior) ' Vendor Ir^tlato

CUCHMSn'lBhJ
AnbOe»rRe»jioA«WSkyU«ners O iJ

PaOBlcf? Date 5 I lOcP
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infopm.Btion of 0, particlpent Is not requifod lo excoed thai which is nwmalty possessed by a iJfudent •
person in ih'e ordinary course of business dealinos.

10. Except for-llsnsectlcns authorized under paragraph 6 of ihese instAxrtions, If a pedidpant in a
covered trarta.BcUon knowingly enters into 0 lower for covered transadicn with a pereoo who ia
euspendod, deborrod. lnoll9JbJa..or vok/frtadiy excluded from partfclpoUon In this trensecOon, In

...eddWon to other remedies avallabta to the Federal govemmeni. DHHS may terminate this trahsactw
forcauseordofeutl. . . .

PftJMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

■11. Thie prospective primary porticipanl certifies 10 the bcsi of Its knowledge and belief, thai It end 119
prifKipels;
.11,1. arenotpresentiydebarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared indigiUe, or

voluntarily excluded from covered tronsactions by any Federal departmoni.or agency;
11.2. have not within a threO'-yaar period oreceding this proposal (oontrad) been convicied'of or hod

a dv8 judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a crtmlnaJ offense, In "
•  connoclton with obtaining. ottempUng lo obialn, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)

transaclion or a cp.nfract urKler apuiyic transaction: violation of Federal Of State, antitrust''  • • statutes Of commission'of ambazztement. then, foroery. bribery fabtfigaiionnf /ift^hMHiftnnf
1' rc®'SUl. JMWMfa'soBtaiement5..or.recdvlng.8lo*en.pfoperty; ...

11.3. are not presently,lr»d'ictod for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmentd! entity
(Federe). State or local) wHh commission of any of the offenses enumeraiod In paragraph (IXb)

■  • of this ccrilflcOtion; and
11.4. have not wtthln 0 three-yoar. period preced'^ig this application/propoaal had one or more puljJlc

.. . .. .transactions (Federal. State or local) termlnatad for cause or dofauK.

13. Where the prospectlvo primary portidpent Is unable to certify to any of thoslalemenls in this
- Cfiftiflc^Uon; such prospeobve partidpant shaU attach an expUrvation to this proposal (controct).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
. 13. By signing and submitting iWs lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined In 45 CFR Part 76, certifies lo the best of its knowiedge and belief that it and its prindpals: "
13.1. a/errot prosenUydebarred. suspended. proposDdfor debarmer^, deciaredinoDgibia. or

'  voluntarily, exdudod from participation inlhls irandoction by any federal depflrtmonl.or agency.
13.2; "where the prospective lower her participant Is unable to certify to any oi the above, such

prospective pa^dponl shall attach en expiorutlon to this proposal {contract).
I

.14. The prospective tower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contr8cl)fhel It wID" •Include tl^ clause entitled 'Qertinc&tion Regarding Debarrnenl, Suspension, Inotiglbllity, b/kI ■ •
Volurilaiy Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' wlihoul modlficeiiori in en lower tier covered •
trensdctio.ns 'end In all soldtations for tovrar der covered trar^ctions.

Vendor jl \

^•"^.rZOLD : . ' . ■
Date . ... Nam'e:

.ExhsbQ F - Ctrtttlcation Ragsr^ Debamteni. Suspension Vertour Initials
, A/id O0i»r h«lpOfWlbtny

0^
C4>'>«*vi»9m ■ Peo«2cfZ • ■ Dat*
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAlNiHG TO

PEDERAL NONDISCRIMiNATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAH-H-BASED ORGAWgATIONS AND
WH13TLEBL0WER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor tdentKied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signdturo of the. C^tractor'o ' -
rdprwntative as kientifiodin Sectiona 1.11 end l.l2oflhe General Provisions, to oiincu.te the.followlr^
oertlficatCT:

Vandor comply, and will require any oubgrantaea Of Subcontractors to comply, with any appHcabto
federal ndndrscdfrBoetTcn requiremerTts, which may Include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Ad of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d} which prohibits '
recip(^S''of feOemi funding under this stetule from discrirnir^^ing, either in employment practical or In
the d^ivery of s^ces or benefita, on the basis of race, cotor. religion, national .origin, and eex. The Act
require certain^ recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- tfve Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Ad of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the crvil rights qbligatiorts of the Safe Streets Act.- Recipients of federal furidtng ur>der this
statute ere prot^ed from discriminating, either in employment practices or In the delivery of services or

..benefit3...on.the basis of.race..color.. religion. nBtionBl.or>giA,.and &ex..„The Act includes-EguaJ

..EmployTnent.Opportunity„Plan r^uuemcms;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibrte redplents of federal fmanctal -
asslstence from drscrlmindting on the besis of rece. color, or national origin in qny program or acUvlty):

• the Rehabllitallon Ad of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits redplents of Federal financial
asslsteoce ifrom dischmrnating on the basis of dsabilrty. in regard to emptoyment and the delivery of
services or benefits; in any program or activity.

- the Ameriw^ with Oisebiiiiies Ad of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimlnotldn and ensures equal opportunity for perscms with disabilities In employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial fadlrtios. ond tronsportotiort;'
• the Education Amerxfments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sectiona 1681.1683.1685-86). which prohtor^ .■
discrimmabon on the bests of eex in federally essisted education programs;

- the Age Otscrimtnation Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohtoits drschmtnation on the
basis of age .in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not vKlude.
emptoyment dlscrimlnattoh;
. 28 C.F.R. pt. 3'1 (U.S. Deportment of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs): 26 C.F.R. pt. 42 •
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulstiohs - Nondiscriminallon: Equal Employment Opportunity: poildes.. .
and Proc^ures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection the laws for faith-based and comrnunity
orgatSlzetloRti): Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and poUcy'fnBking
criteria for partnerships with farlh-l>d»ed end neiohborhcod oroantamtiono;

- 28 C.F.R. PL 36 (U.S. Deportment of Justice Regulatiortt-Equal TreatmenMorFarth-eased
Orgariizations): end Whtstlebtower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization

(NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancemen'i of Contract Empb^ Whistlebiower Protections, which protects employees against -
reprisoi lor certain whistle blowing activities In connection wHh federal grants arid co'mracts.'

. The certificate set out betow is a maleria) representation ol fact upon which relianca is placed when the .
agency awards the grant. Fofse certification or violation of the certification shall t)e grourxls for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govornmont svtde ouspeneion or
debarmerH.

CichUC
Vendor InMsh.

cwr>mBnaCcnyMm««rm»*wwrupuui*^ar«OirVMonetwu)WoB.b>WT<>wnmdrSfta»<oOsc<nigB
•eWteMiowr prtMcfar*n wmaoDav irwazrv

ML.
^ s

Pagsicrj . paa P /
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In the Bveni e Fodorai of court or Fodorol or Stale odmin»trative agency makes a finding of
di8crtrrtr>etior) aftef a due process hearfng on .tlic grounds of race, color, religion, national origin or sex
against a racipientof funds, the rocipient will forward a copy of the findino to the Offico for Cm) Rights', "to
Ihe-appirceWo.'conlfactirrg ogancy or division within the O^rimeni of Health end Hunan Seryices arid-:
to ̂  pepartmenl of Heafth end Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor id^fW In Sedlon 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by stature of (he Contractor's .
repraserUative as identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the followina
cortificatcin: ■ . •

I. By signing ar>d submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor floroea to comply with the DrovfBioha •
Indicated above. '

• VendorName: /^U ^

Date 17Hame: jb^A>

dxAS

e2m4 ■

«Qn. lOQHU

EihWG, • -;v/ =
. .. • MJ ■...
.C»<aaaoftgcctfs6<rm*i»)n^(Bmnrootne<flQPF>itni Nona Kwirew. 6»d Tnwiuier rimamcOwnittott " ■"

«nd nnMOMr (rcaocm
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CERTIFICATION REGAftDING EHVIRQNMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public tew 103-227, Port C - Envlronmcnlol Tobaw Smoke, ebo known es the-PfOrChWren Act of 1990,
requires Irtat smoking not be permitted In any portion of er>y indoor fadlity owned or leased or ■

^trected for by an entity end routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 16. If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by' Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to .children's eervioes provided in private residences, fadlilies funded solely by
Medicare or Modl^d Kinds., end portions of fadiiUes used for Inpalient drug or alcohol treWnent. Failure,
.to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the Imposition of a civil mortetory penalty of up to.
$1000 per day end/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible enttty.-

The Vendor (der^liflod In Section 1.3 of the Gorierol Provtsions ogroes, by slgriature of the Coniroctor's
represaniative'eis. Identified In Section 1. it and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute Iho'follpwing
certiflcotioh:

1. 8y signing and ̂.bmilting this contract the Vendor egreas to make redsonabla efforts to comply wilh
en Bppllcabfe prpvi^s of PubUc.Law.t03:227. part C. known as tho.Pro-CWId^n Act.of.l994..

VondcfNamo: /t/// I DrAj: ^ ■■ . .

Date

(ill-Exhlbft H - CertifcaDon RagartCno •. Vandor Iflttata
Envfconmortai Tobocco Srnok# P'- \f I

cuoHhsniflru . . Piuelofl ... • Data o
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY
ACT BUStNE&S ASSOCIATE

The Vendor i.d^lifted In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agreesJo •
'^mply wHh ̂  Health Insurance Pcrtebilrty and Accountability Act, Public Lew 104*191 end . - -
with the Stenidards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable.Health informatioh, 45
CFR parts 160 arxf 164 applicdble to txjsiness associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Assodate* shall mean the Vertda and suticontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive.
use.Of have access to protect^ health information under this Agreement and.•Covofod pritity'
shall mean the State of New. Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1: Dcflnitiona.

3. 'Breach' shall have the s^e meaning as (he term "Breach' In secGon 1,64.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal RegulaGorts.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given su^ term in soctbn 160.103 of Title 45. Code .
■•'•■"dflFedeVarR^uIations""'"'" .v

C. 'CQveri^d Entity* has Iha maanino oiven such term in secGon 160 103 of TIGe 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Deskarmted Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'dasigr^ated record set"
in 45'CFR Section 164.501.

0. 'Data Aacreoatlon' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregaGon' In 45 CFR =;
Section 164.501..

f. "'Health Cara Operations' shall have the same moaning as the term "health caro operaGons"
^,in■45.CFR■Section 164.501. ■

p. "HITECH Act' means the Health Informaiion Technology for Economic end Clinical Health
Act. TKteXdI. Subtitle D. Pert 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'tii£AA* rneans the Hwlih Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1998, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Se^rity of Individually IdenGflable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160.162 and i64 an'd'amendments thereto..

1. 'Individual' shall have (he same meaning as the term 'individual* in 45 CFR Section. 160.103
and shall fndude a person who qualifies as a personal represantaGve in accordance with 45 '
CFRSection 164:501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Startdards for Privacy of .Individually IdenGfiable-Health •;
TnfprmpGpri et 45 bPR Paris 160 end 164. promulgeted under HIPAA by the United States .
Department of Health and Human Services.

k.' 'Protected Health information' shall, have the same meaning as the term 'protected health;. . .
' Informatiori'jn 45 CFR SecGon. 160.103, limited to .the information created or received by

.  ■ Busihess-if^sopate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. /i /
3^14 ExhUll "VindOftnHbb

Hftallh Ift^nco Portablily Act • •• .
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I. . IReQuired.bv Law* shBil have the same meaning as the term "required by law* in 45 CFR
SocUdh 164.103.

rn. 'Secretarv' shall mean the Secretary ol the Deoartment of Health and Human .Services or ..
' hUyhW''<Je6igh©e.

n. ."Security Rule' Ghall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
H^lth trtformation at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments,thereto..

o.. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information* means protected health information that.la not
■■ ■ se'cyred by e lechfiplogy standard that fenders protected .health Information unusable. - • •

unreadable, or ind^pherable to unauthorized individuals and Is deveiopi^ or endorsed by
a standards devdopiing organization.that is accredited by the American Naliorial.Staridards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have «ie meaning ' _• • _
estabQshedWd^ 45 C.F.R' Pafts~160. '162"end 164,' as from time tb~^
HITECH" - . . • ' •'
Act,

(2) Buftlrtees Aasociato Use and Disclosure of Protoctad Health Inforrhatlon.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transrnit Protected Heailh
Information (PHI)'6xcept as reasonably necessary to provide the services outliried under

; Exhibll. A of ithe Agreement. Further, Business A^ciate. including but hot limitdd to all -
.its jdirectprs, officers, employees end agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI iniany manner that would constitute e violation of the Privacy ar^ Security Rule.

b. . Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
.  . I. For the proper management and edministrBtion of the Business Associate;

.  II. As required by taw, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph ()• belovir; or
III. >For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of.Cbvered

•  ■ . -Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Assc^ate must obtain, prior to moking ony such diedoeure,. (!)
reasonable .assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held-confidentraliy.-arid
t^ed or further di^losed only as required by law or for the purpose for. -which it was.
disclosed to the thi^ party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to riotify Business

. Assodate,. In accordance wHh the HIPAA Privacy; Security, and Breach Nbtifl.cation
■ Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.'

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasor^ably necessary to
provide eeivices under"Exhibit A of the Agreem.erit, dlsclose.any PHl'ln response to'a'

-  request for disclosure on the basis that i! Is required by law, without first notifying;
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to objed to the disdo^re and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busir>e99

3/2014 G^t) Vantfv'MM

Hoelth tmufvnco Pon»bili(y A^i.
RuctnMS AmocM* AgrecfncTTt
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Exhibit I

, Assodato shall refrain from disclosing PHI until Covored Entity has exhaustdd 'all - .
remedies.

e. if the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to.
be bound by addlttonal resthcUpns over and above those uses of disclosures or secunty ...
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate

. ehall be bound by such additional resthctJons and shall not disclose PHI in vtolatioh of
such additional resMctions and shall eblde by any additionaJ security, safeguards.'' "

(3) ObltaaMomi and ActivHiee of Bualnese Aaaoclate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of eny use or disclosure of protected,
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches.of unsecured

. protected health information and/or. eny security incident that rhby have an impact on the
-^-protected health-infofm^on of the Covered Entity; -

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perforrh a risk assessment wh^ It-becomes
aware of any of the at>ove situalions. The risk assessment shall iridude. but riot be
limited to:

o The .nature and extent of the protected health Informabori involved, including.the ■
' typ^ of Identifiers end the likelihood of re-identif»cation;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

9 Aether the protected health informallon was actually acQuired or viewed
0  The extent which the risk to the protected health Informatjori has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate eh.Qtl complete the risk assessment within.46 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findir>gs of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Assodate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and probedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on foahalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HtPAA and the Privacy end
Security Rule.

e. Bus'mess Associate shall require all of its buuness associates (hat receive, use.or have,
. access to PHI under the Agreement, to sgree in writing to adhere to the samo

restrictions and conditions on the use end disdosure of PHI contained herein, induding
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The CoverediEntlty
shall be cbn^dered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business essodale . ..

.. agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHl., . .

1/2014 - Vondor l/lIttDb Jll. ■
HeaflMnsu«we Portahfllty Ait
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pursuant to this Agreement,- with rights of enforcement,and indemnlficalton from such
business assodates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of.the standard
contract provisions (P'37) of this Agreement for purpose of use and disclosure of
protiect^, health Information.

f. .

h.

J

k.

V20U

Wlthlri Rv;^ (5) business days of receipt of 8 written request from Covered &)tity...
Business Associate shall make available during norm^ t>usir>e.ss hours at its offices all
rocords. books,, agreements, poiicira ar>d procedures relating to the use and disclosure';
of PHI to the Covered. Entity, for purposes of enabltng Covered Entity to det^mine
Business Associate's contpliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receivmg e.written request from Covorod Entity.
Busine^ Assists shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the .
Covered Entity, .or as directed by Cpvered.Entity, to an Individual In order to.meet the

.  fsqufromonls under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

• Withln.ten (10) business days of raving a wrilten f^ue^l from Covere<^Entity for an" arnc^rnent'of-PHror a rec^ebou't"^!^ a*D_esi.gn.ai0d/Rew
Srt. the Business Assodele shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for ..

■ arner>drneril end incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfili its' .
otlli^tiohs under 45 (pFR Section 164.526.

. Business'Assbciatd.shali document such disclosures of PHI end information relat^ to
■st.^ di^osures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a requ^t by.ari' -
Ir^vldual for an accountino of disdosures of PHI In ecccrdahce with 45 CFR Section
164.628.

. Within (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a :
. request for an eccountlng of disdosures of PHI, Business Assodate ^11 make evailable.

to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfjli its obilgattons. .
lo.pTOvide an accounting of disdosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR .
Section 164.S28.

In the everit eny (ndividual requests exess to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Assodate shall within two (2)
business days forward sudi request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the .

- respons.ibili.ty of responding to fbrwarded requests. However, l.f forwarding the
indlvidual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered ^ntity-or (he Bu^ness
Assodate to vidale HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business^ Assodate
shall instead respond to the individual's request es required by such law and riotify '
Cdv^ed Entity of such response es soon es practicable.

yvtthln ten (10) business/days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, ^e ■
Business.Assodate shall return or destroy, as.specified by Covered Entity, aD PHI
received fn^. or created or received by the Business Associate in connecOon wl^ the
Agrearrient. and shall rtOt retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or' ;.
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PH) has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreenient, Buslne^ Assodate shall continue to extend the protectioris ^ the
Agreernent, to such PHI and limit fu.ither uses and disdosures of such. PHI. to those
purposes, that make the return or destruction Infeasibte, for so long as Business

ExNbni VaiytorMbab
KaitUi (nsUrtnc4 PcrUbiTty Ad
4usin*s9 A«MCi(MD A^rMrnent '
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... Ass^te maintains such'PHI. If Covered Entity, in its soto discretion. requlreslhdtthe ■
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall coHrfy to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

{4) Qbltaattona of Coverad Entity

a. Cover^ Entity shall notify Business Associate of any charges or limitation(6) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided (o individuals in accordance v^th 45 C.FR ̂ ctloh

'  164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
...• use Of tfisclosure" of PHI.

b. . Covered Entity shall prompUy notify Business Associate of any changes in, .o; revocation
of ̂ rmlsslon provided to Covered Entity by individuafs whose PHI may be used or • •
disclosed by Buslna^ Associate under this Agreer7>ent, pursuant to 45 CFR Sectldn
.164.506or45CFR^ction 164.508. ■ '

c..: Covered entity shall promptly noitty Business Associate of eny resections on the use of
that'Cbvered Erttltv has'a'gree'd td In accordance witH'4S CFR 164.522,

to the axTent that Vucli resthcion may affed Business Associate's use or dlsdowre of
PHI.

(5) .Tennlnatlon for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard remns and conditions {P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may tmmediaicly lerminalc the Agreem^l upon Covered
Entity's know(edge;of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement'eel forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity rrwy either Imnie^ately

.  terminate the Agrcerhent or provide an opportunity for Business Assodale to cura lho.
elleged.breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity,
determines that neither torminallon nor cure Is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
viofabon to the Secretary.

(6) Miecellaneoua

e. Definifions and Reoulgtofv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have Ute same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule. arnerKted
frtim lirrie to. lime. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to irxdude this Exhibit I. to
a Sectkm in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effed Of as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Buslriesa Associate agree to lake such ectlon.es Is
•nece^ry to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply wHh the changes In the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy .and
Security Rule, end applicable federal and slate law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that ii has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interoretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall t^.resolved.
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule." .

Vendw Wltote

no<t*b<ttty Acl
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e. . SaQfMfltk>n. if any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the sppiication thereof to any
person(B) or circumetance is held invalid, such invalidity ahoQ not offoct other teims or
condiUons which can be given effect wtitioui the Invalid term or oondtUon; to this end the
terms end oondlUons of this Eidilbit i ere dedared eevorabie.

f. SuMvel. Provielons In thb Exhibit I regarding the use end dlsdofture of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protocUons of the Agroemont in section (3) I, ttio
defenae end IrKfemrrtficetion provisions of eectlon (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms end conditions (P*37). ehaO survive (he termlnatl^ of the AgreemenL

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partlos hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

Oepartmem of HeeRh and Human Seryieee

The State

Jz:2s^
Slgnsture of AuthoHzod RepresantaUve

.  S f^x.
NamedMLthorized Repres^tabve

Title of Authohzed Representative

Date ' 7

/// AinJiT' l^j^ALc/drS
_ Nanrw of the Vendot^

Signature of Authorized RepresenlaUve

•

hiama of Authorized Repreeentative

Aodjrjl
Title of Authorized Representative

2oZC>
Dale

a/9014 Eihtiei

Mulh Wtrme PofUbUy Azt
BMirHM AMOdito AerMOWX
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CERTIFtCATIQN REGARDING THE FEDERALFUHDIHG ACCOUNTABiLfTY AND TRANSPAftENCV
=.ACTfFFATAlCOMPLrANCE

The Federel Funding Accoumabilily and Transparency Acl (FFATA) requlroj prime awftrdeee ol IrxJivkJuaJ
Federol gr^ts equel'to or greater than S2S.OOO'and awarded on or aher October 1. 2010. to ri^rt on
data related to executive oompenietion and essdclatod frst-tier oub-grents of $2S.OOO or more, if the'

.initial award Is b^w $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a lota) award equal-to or over
$25,000, (he awWd is subject to the FFATA reportino requiremonts, as of the dole of the award.
In aceordanoe with 2,CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation trifomiallon), the
Departmoni of Heallh and Human Sorvicas (DHMS) must report (he following infomatton for any
sul)3y«rd Of contract award subject to Iho FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of'cnliry
2. Amotffit of ew^d
3. Funding agency.
4-. NAJCS code'for cootrocts / CFDA program number for grants
5.' Program "eourco
6. Award (iUedescripUvo of the purpose of the funding action
7. Locaiioh of the emiiy
8. ..prindple.plsce of performance. ... .

. 9. Unique identifier.of.Oie.entity (DUNS fi) . " .
10. Total compensation'arid r>am66 of the top five executives if:

10.1.' More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federel government, and those
revenues are greater than $2SM annually and

10.2. (^mpensatlon,lnfofmatior> Is rxttab'eady available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which,
thc.oward or award omondmpnt is madb.
The Vondor.ldcnilfied in Seictior. 1.3 of the General Pruvislons agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Fuhdrng Accbuntabiiity and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 ortd Public Lew 11'0-252.
andiCFR Pert 170 (Reporting Subaward and ExecutNo Compensa.Uon Infonnalion). and .further agrees
to have .the Contracib^s representative, as identifled In Sections l.l.i and 1.12 of tho General Provisions'
execute the following Certification:
The below riamed.Vendor-agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Departrheni ..
of Health and Human .Services 'end to comply with ell applicable provisions of the Federal Fir^andai
Accountabilit>' end Transparency Act.

Vendor Name

Date Name:

.-0

TMo:

.ElhltiilJ - CortlAcslion f^vdlng th« Fad«r«1 Funding Vendot Initials
•  , Aficaunl«biliiyAndTnm«pofe«cyAd(FFATA)Conipfitnca ■ Q.iJ.DaDA
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As Ihe Vendor idontifiod In Soclion 1.3 of Ihe Genorol Provisions. I certify that the respoosos to the
twtow listed questions ore true and acajraie.

1. The DUNS number for-your entity is:

2. In your business or orgonizatfen's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business Of organization
receive (t) eOf^cent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contrects. sgboontracts, -
loans, grants, 6ub-grBr>1s. ond/or cooperative egreements; and (2) $25,600,000 or- more in arvtubi

•  gross revenues from U.S. federal conlracto, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranls.. and/or ■ • -
cooperative egreemenis?

NO YES

,  If the anewerlo#2 above Is NO. fitop hero
\

If the ansv^r to «2 eboye is YES, please answer the foJIowing:

S.l.bow^'e public.havb.access ip.intormotion abouttho.compeAsaiion.of.lhftexeojbyos.in.your
business or organization .through periodic reports fUad under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

. Exchange-Art of 1B34 (i5U.S.C.78m(a). 7ao(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
.19867 .

NO YES

If the enswer to tf2 atx>ve Is YES. stop here

If Ihe.onswer.to »3etx)ve Is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
orgenization are as follows: ■

Name:

■Name: .

Name:

Name:

Name;

AmpunI:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

cuoMViiori)

Emibit J - Cenificelion Regarding ihe Federd Funding
Accouhubdiy And Transparency AO (FFATa) Ccmplarn
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DHHS Ihfomiation Security Requirements

A. iD.efinKjohis:

. The following temis may be refiecled end have the described meaning in this tJocumeni; ,

•1. 'breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,-
uriaulhorized aoquisition. unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons, other than authorued users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personaily idenilfiable

•  inform^on, whether physicai or electronic. With regard to Protected Health-
infomiatlon,' Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Broach' in section
TM.402 of Title 45. Code of Fedora! Regulations.

2.. 'Computer Security Inddenf shall have the same meaning "Com^ler Security
Incident - in section two (2) of NIST Publication BOO-61., Computer Security. Inddenl -

• Handltng- Guide.' NBtiona1 lnstituteT3t"Stand8rds and'Technology,'U;S.' Oepariment'' '
of Commerce.

3. .'ConfxJentl^ Informalion* or 'Corrfklerrtial Data' means all confidential .information
.disclosed by one party to-the other such as alt medical, health; fmanciai.'public

.  asststance benefits and piersona! information Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Infprmetlbn and=

:  Personally'ldentifiabie Infofmation.

.. Conndentiai Information also Includos any and .ail information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behaif of the Department of Health arid
Human Servicw, (DHHS) or acce^d In the course of pertorming contracted
aervices - of which' cdiedion, d.tsclosure. protection, and disposition is governed by
stale or federal law or regulation. This Information includes, but is, not limited to
Protected Health Irrformalion (PH|). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Infonpnelion.(PFl). Federal Tax Informalion (FTI), Sodal Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User' moans any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employw,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream, user. - etc.) that receives
DHHS .data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portabilily and Accountability Ad of 1996 and the
ri^uiations promulgated thereunder.

6. ' "Incident* n>e3ns ar) ad that potentially violet^ en e)^iclt or implied eecori^ policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized act^ to a .
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized u^ of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and char>ges to system hardware. ..
flrm\^r8, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge. lnstnjctior)..pr -

. consent. Inci.dents IrKlude (he loss of data through theft or dewce misplacement; loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of-physical .or electronic •
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.  .mafl, sll of which may have the potential to put the data et risk, of unauthorized
access, um, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New. Hampshire's" Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, end
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and .hot adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI PFI
PHI or confidential OHHS data.

8. 'Personal Irtoimalion' (or 'Pi') means information which can be used to distinguish.
. or trace an individuars identily. such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. Wometrlc records, etc..

— vetorie, or .when comblrted wfth other personal or.lderitrfyinglnforTnahon whfchlslinked'
• -Of llnkable to a specific Indtvldual.'such esdale arxJ place 'ofblrlh', mother's'maiden"
• name. etc. ..

i

,9. ■ "Priva^ Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable.hteaith
Information at 4S.C.F.R. Parte 160 end 164. promulgated under HIRAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

! * I • • '

.10. 'Prelected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definitibn of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Ruiia at 45 C F R 6
160.103: ■

11, "Security Rule' shall mean-the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Irtformaijon at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. arid amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured. Protected Health Intomiaiion' means Protected Hearth Infonrtation that is
not secured by a technology standard thai renders Protected Health infonnaUon

..unusable, unreadable, or Indetipherable to unauthorized IndMdudls and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is acaedited by
the'American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF OHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Uee.arKl Disclosure of ConftdentiallnforTTtation.

■ 1., Tho-Contrador must not use. disclose, ma'mlain or transmit ConfldentJal.Information
exoepi as reasonably necessary as outlined under ihis.Contract. Further, Contractor.
Including but not limited to all'its directors, offlcers, employees and agents, must rtot ."

•  • use; discfose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Securi^ Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Conftdenlial Information in response to a
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request for dlsdodure on the basis (hat it is required by. law,- in "response to e
.subpoena, etc., witl^l first notifyirTg DHHS so that DHHS has an opppr^fijty .tp
'consent or object to tho disclosure.

■ 3. If DHHS holtfies the Contractor Uiat DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
.  .reactions over end above (hose uses or disclosures or security safeguerde of PH|

pursuartt to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must, be lx)und by such
additional, restrictions-, and must not disdose PHI in viblaiipn of 9uch additional
restrictions end mustabide by any additional security safeguards. • '

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or denvative there from disclosed to an End
User must only bo used pursuant to the terms of this Coniracl.

5. .the Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
^  " _
—6. ••-The Contractor. agroes to grant access to the"data' to*th8~authDrized reprasentatiyes'

.  - of: DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the.terms of this
Contrad.

.METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

.1 Application Encryption. If End- User Is transmitting DHHS data cohtalning
iCohfldential Data between applicaiions. the Contractor attests the appilcatiohs have

;  ■ been-evaluated by an expert knowiedgeable in cyber security-end th.at: said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internet. ̂ ;= • .

2. Computer Disks and.Portable Storage Devices. End User may ix)I computer disks .
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of (ransmrttihg DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Emell. End User may only employ email to trensmil Confidential Data If
email is encrypted and being sent to arid being received by email addresses-of
persons author^ed (p receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Wob Site. If End User is employing thte Web to transmit Confidential
beta.' the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site rhust be
secure. SSL.encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5.. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharirvg Sites. End User may not use file
..hosting servioes. such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to' trensmit
Contidentjal Data.

6. Ground MaH Service. End User may only transmit Conndential Data via cerllfled ground
mairwithin the contineritat U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops end PDA. If End User is (employing portable devices .to transmit
.  Confidential Date said devices must be encrypted and password-jyotected. '

8. Open .Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open.
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wireless network. End User must emptoy a virtual private r>etwofk (VPN) when
remotely tranamitting vie an open wireless f^twork. '

e. Remote User Communication. It .End User Is employing remote commurikation to
access , or trwsmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Iristafled on the End User's mobile d0vfc8(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

.10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End -User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data', End User wHI
etAirture the Folder and access prtvlleges to prevent Inappropriate (fisdosure of
Information, SRP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deJetion cydo (i.e. Confidential Da.la will be deleted every 24

__hpurs).

llrV^raless Deyloes. MerTd User is transmitting ConfWenllal Data via wireless "devices, all "."'
•  dalalrhuislbeencryptedtopreventlneppropftaiedlsdosureoflnfofmalioh..

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The ContrBctor.wiil oniy retain the data and any derivaUvo of the data for the duration pf this
•  -Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data end-any ■
derivaHve in whatever form it rnay axisl. unless. 'Otherwise required by law or perrriltted
under this Contract. To this endl the parties must:

A. Retention

■  1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process date collected In
.  connection, with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the Unitdd

.States. This phy^cal location requirement shall also apply .in the Implementdtiof) of •
dpud oomputing. doud service or doud storage capabilities, and Includes backup ' '
data arid OisQster Recovery locations.

2. The. Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that car^ im^ct State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential informaUon for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for .its End
. • -Users m supjxirt of protecting Department confidential information.

.  4. Tho Contrector egrees to retain ell elecironic and hard copies of Confidential Data
'  In a secure location and identified in.section IV. A.2

5.. The Contractor egrees Confidentlal Data stored in a D.oud must be .In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
foflulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devlas must have
(^rr'ontly-aupporled end hardened operating -systems, the latesrahlFyiral. "enli- -:
hacker,, anti-spam, anli-spyware, and anli-matw8rc ulililies. The environment, as 8
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whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the Site's
Chief Informalloo Offrcer In the detection of any security vulnerabili^ of the hosting
infrastructure.

•  ■ B. .Disposition

1. If the Contractor will mainiain any Cqnfideniiat Infomiation on Hs systems <or its
• sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process tor.
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written ceftiflcation for any State of New Hampshire date destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergoncyi and or disaster

—recovery operetions.-When no torrger In userelactronic medla contalnlng StBte of*"
NeyrHampshire'data"Shan be rendCTed unrecoverable via.a ee'cure wipe^wgr^

.  In accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media-
sanltiietton, or otherwise physically destroying the m^la.- (for. example.

:... degaussing) as described In NIST Special Publication 800-88. Rev.1, Guldeline&
for Media ^nlliaatton. NationaJ Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and oerllfy In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Depa/tmeht
upon• request. The written certificalion will indude all details nece^ry to.
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where'applicable.'.
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State'end Conlrador prior to destruction.

2. - Unless otharv^se specified, within thirty (30) days of ihe leminaljon of this '
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using e .
secure n^hod such as shredding.

■  3. . UnlBss otherwise -specified, within thirty (30) days of the terrninatkin of this ■
Conlracl, Contractor agrees to completely destroy ail electronic Cbrrfidentidl Date • =
by means of data erasure, also Known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. -Conlrac(or agrees to safeguard the OHHS Data received under this Contract, erxJ any.
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Conlractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Departmcrit..
confidentiarinformation collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In (he delivery

• -of "dpntra.cted services.

2. The. Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department..
• confidential irrformalion throughout UW information Hfecyde. where applicable. .(fr.o.fri
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) r^artfiess.of the.,
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).

/
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"■ 3- The .ConlfBctof will maintain appropriate authentication .and ac^ss controls to
-conlractor.syslems thai collect, transmit, or store Department conndenttallnforThation

'  wtMreapptlcabie.

-• 4. -The Contractor will ensure proper security mcnhoring capabiHUoa oro in placo to"
detect pbtoritial .security evenie that can Impact State of NH .s^terns and/or
Department confidentlallnformatjon for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor ¥ril! provide regular security awareness and education for its "End
• Users in support of protecting Department confWentlallnformatjon.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contrgcting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a

•T — -program, of ••an-lntemal-proceaa-or-procesees thatr defines-spodflc-sacurity
•• • expectations, end-monHoffng-compliance to-eeewftty iequiremerrts that-at-djminhmfTn--

malch those forlhe Contractor. Including breach notification requlrerrienis.
7. The Contractor will wort* with the Department to sign, and com^y-with all applicable

State of Now Hampshire and Department system access and euthortzation po^s
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department sysiem(s). Agreements will "
compieted and signed by the Contractor and any epplicabfe subcontractors prior to
'systemaccess beir^g authorized.

B. It the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pureuerSt to 45
CFR 1W.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Budness. Assodale Agreement

. (BAA) with the Department and Is reaponsible for mainteining compliance with the
agreement.'

■  9. The ContfactOf will wort* With the Department at fts request to complete a System
^nagement Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Oeparbnent and

.  Cont^or to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerebHjtie.s may
.  . occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be comploled

annually, or an .alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by.
. .the Contrartor. of the Department rriay request the survey be competed.when the
sttpe of the eng^ement between the Oepartmerrt and the Cohtractor changes. •

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshlro
Of C)epartment data offshore or outside the bour^daries of the United Steles uril»s
prior express written consent Is. obtained from the Information Security Office" '

•  leadership member within the Department.'

tt. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor sl^H -
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly, take measures to •
.prevent future breach and minimize any damage or toss resulting from the bfbacii. '
The State shall recover from the Contractor el) costs of respond and recovery.from .
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the breach, tndudino but not Ibnlied to: credit monltohng services, malBng costs and
.costs essociated with website and telephone call center services necessary dua to
thc.breach. •

12. Contractor must, c^ply with all applicable statutes arx) regulati.qns regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, end must In ail other respects
maintain the privacy and security ol PI and PHI at a tevel acKl scope that is not less
than the levei and scope of requirements applicable to fad^al sgendes, Including,
but not llmHod to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govem protections for Individually Identifiable health
Information and as applicable und^ State law.

13. Contractor ̂ rees to establish and meintein appropriate admrni3tra1rvBrtochnjcal.~and •
•physical-'sa^u8rds^t<rprot6ct tfTa~confidBntiatity •of~the Conftdentfar-Data ' and to"
prevent unauthorized use or access to li: The safeguards must provide a level and '
.scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requiremontis
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refpr (p VerKlor Resources/Procurement at htlps:/Avvyw.nh.gov/doii/vendpr/lndex.htm
for the Department of Ihfomia.lion Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification end inddeni
response process. The Contractor will notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and tt^
Stele's S^rity Officer of any security breach immedialety. at ̂ ■•emall addresses
provided in Section VI. This Includes a confidential information breach, oomputer
security Inddent, or suspected breach which affects or Includes any Stale of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire networlr. -

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained i.inder this
Contract to only.those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to .
perform their official duties In oonnectioo with purposes identified In this .Contract..

16. The Contractor must ensure that ell End Users:

a. cornpty with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A., al»ye.
Implemented to protect Confidential informetior^ that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contact from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all limes.

0. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing 1^1. PI, or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

•  d. send ernelte containing" Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sept to; and being received by email addresses of. persons Buthortzed to.
receive such Information.
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e. Umit discloaure of (he Confidentiai informatioo (o the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and Individuaily
IdenUflable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an i^ea that is
physicelly end technoiogicaiiy secure from access by unauthorized .persons
during duty hours as weii as norv-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keya.

.  btomalricldentlflers.etc.). - ■

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivBtive-fdes containing personally identifiable information/and in ah cases,
such data must encrypted, et aO times v^n in transit, at rest, or .when,
stored on portable media as required in section iV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used end

__dJs.cio^_. using ̂ appropriate, safeguards.. as.. determined.. by_$_risk:based..
.... .assessmcm.of tba.clrcumsiances.involved ,

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be .
shared with anyone. End Users will Keep their credential inforrnation secure.'
.This applies to credentiab used to access the site directly or .Indirectly through
0 third par^ eppllcalion.

ContrBclor is reaponsibib for oversight and compliance of their End Usei^. DHHS
reserves .the right to conduct onsite Irispedions to monitor, compliance' with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein. HlPAA, '
end other applicable laws orxl FodornI regulations until euch time the Corifidontisl Data
is disposed of in aooordance wilh this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTINO

The Contractor must rtotify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents end Breaches immediately,- at the email addresses provided in
.Section VI.

The Cor>tmctor. must further handle and report Inddenls and Breaches Invdvlr^ PHI in
accordance wfth (he agency's documented incident Handling and Breach Noti^tfqn

. procedures end In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. in a<)dttioo to. end
-notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicablo obligations and procedures.
Contractor'-s-procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. identify Incidents;

.. 2. D.etermine if personally identifiable information is involved !n Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required. In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. identify arxJ convene e core response group to determine ̂  risk level of Incidents
and determine rfsk-based responses to Inciderits; end

tor tnlOsti M- ■ ■■■
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■  5. Determine whelher Breach r^iflcation is required, and. if EO.:ldenlify.eppropri8te ■
Breach notification methods, timing, eource. end contents from among different

.  • options, end bear costs associated wdth the Breach notice as well es eny miliflatlon
meesures. / -o

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI most be addrewed and reported as '
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. . '. .

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHHS Privacy Officer:

OHHSPrivacypfTicer@dhhs.nh.gov

B./'DHHS Sewrity Officer.

OHHSInformalionSccurityOfficeOd hhs.nh.gov
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